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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007

(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of the Board is that the applicant will be called to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board may then ask questions of the applicant. The public will then be invited to make comments. We will try to make a decision this evening; however, we have up to 62 days to make a decision. And, first I would ask if you have anyone has a cell phone to please turn it off, so that we won’t be interrupted. And, also when speaking please speak into the microphone and it does come off of the stand so that you can move about while you’re speaking. Thank you.

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

ROBERT KUNKEL

JOHN MC KELVEY

JAMES MANLEY

DAVID DONOVAN, ESQ.

ABSENT ARE: 

BRENDA DRAKE

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: If there is anyone here this evening in reference to the Longinott/Wygant property we will not be hearing that tonight. I am going to read a letter that was delivered to us. We are asking for an appearance at the Zoning Board Meeting tonight to be postponed until the July meeting. Our lawyer, Mr. Rob Daly, doesn’t feel he is adequately prepared to present an appeal tonight. Please accept our apology and honor our request. Sincerely, Kelly Longinott.   

(Time Noted – 7:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:04 PM) 

ROBERTA TEJEDA/FELIX MOYA

7 NOVELTY WAY, WALDEN








(11-1-114.2) A/R ZONE




Applicant is seeking an area variance to erect an above ground pool in a front yard (has two front yards).

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening is Roberta Tejeda/Felix Moya, 7 Novelty Way, Walden.

Ms. Tejeda: Good evening.

Chairperson Cardone: If you would just state your request.

Ms. Tejeda: Our request is to erect an above ground pool in our backyard but since I believe the Zoning Law states that since my property ends in a main road, it’s considered a front yard so I have two front yards.

Chairperson Cardone: Are the mailings in order?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, I’m sorry, the mailings are all in order.

Chairperson Cardone: I’d also like to state that the Members of the Board do visit all of the properties. Do we have any questions from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Just, if you’d identify yourself for the record?

Ms. Tejeda: Roberta Tejeda.

Mr. McKelvey: I was there when they were home and they own a two acre lot and their back property is all woods, it goes towards 52.

Ms. Tejeda: Yes, it is.

Mr. McKelvey: And they don’t plan on building on that.

Ms. Tejeda: No.

Ms. Eaton: Is that 52 or 300?

Ms. Tejeda: 300.

Mr. McKelvey: Oh, 300, I’m sorry, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If so, please stand and state your name and address. I would entertain any motion to close the public hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Eaton: Second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call vote.

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes





Brenda Drake: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Ms. Tejeda: Thank you. Do we need to sign anything or … nothing, that’s it? O.K. Thank you, have a good night.  

Chairperson Cardone: You could stay if you would like, we would probably voting on it later after the public hearings are all closed.

Ms. Tejeda: Oh, O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s up to you, you don’t have to. 

Mr. Moya: That’s tonight, right?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, tonight.

 






 (Time Noted – 7:06 PM)   

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                              (Resumption for decision: 9:37 PM)

ROBERTA TEJEDA/FELIX MOYA

7 NOVELTY WAY, WALDEN








(11-1-114.2) A/R ZONE




Applicant is seeking an area variance to erect an above ground pool in a front yard (has two front yards).

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On the first application of Felix Moya and Roberta Tejeda, first I’d like to read into the record the Orange County Department of Planning report, the proposed action has no significant Countywide or Intercommunity impact and the County recommendation is Local determination. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. McKelvey: He has plenty of land there that you’re not going to see it Route 300.

Mr. Manley: I think the visual impacts are also very minimal.

Ms. Eaton: From either the front or the back of his property however you want to look at it. 

Chairperson Cardone: This is an area variance to erect an above ground pool in a front yard on a lot with two front yards. Do I have a motion to approve this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes





Brenda Drake: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. 

(Time Noted – 9:39 PM)   

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:07 PM) 

ANN CARBONE



66 D’ALFONSO ROAD, NBGH







(101-6-13) R-2

Applicant is seeking a Special Use Permit for an Accessory Apartment and an area variance for the apartment floor area.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Ann Carbone at 66 D’Alfonso Road in Newburgh.  

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Brown: All right, I’m Charles Brown, engineer for the applicant and this proposal is to add an addition to an existing house with an accessory apartment for a family member. Our request is for a Special Use Permit and also the size of the addition, which is approximately 1000 sq. ft., is roughly 32% of the total building where the Code allows 25%. Because the existing residence is so small we’re high on that percentage and we’re asking for a variance on the percentage for the accessory apartment as far as floor area. 

Ms. Eaton: Somewhere in this application I read that there was 1475 square footage for the home and then on this application I see 2157 what is the square footage of the house right now?

Mr. Brown: The existing house is 21 and the addition is 1000 roughly.

Ms. Eaton: The addition is what?

Mr. Brown: It would be 1000 sq. ft. So again the addition is 32% of the total area. 

Chairperson Cardone: Is there any way you can cut that back and make that smaller? 

Mr. Brown: Again, it’s for a family member and it won’t meet the families’ needs.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you repeat that?

Mr. Brown: It’s for a family member and it won’t meet the needs of the client and his mother.

Mr. McKelvey: You’re way over.

Mr. Hughes: If I may?

Mr. Brown: Hmm, hm.

Mr. Hughes: There is something confusing here about your calculation or about the way you went about the formula. What I have on my sheet is pertinent to 17a in 185 Section and it says that the apartment is 31x32 = 995 sq ft. The dwelling is 1475 and if you do a 25% of 1475 then 368 is allowed which is 25%. You’re requesting 67 ½%.

Mr. Brown: But the 25% is of the total building area.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, I’m familiar with the formula.

Mr. Brown: Right.

Mr. Hughes: But you’re asking for 67% when we’re only allowed to grant 25%. That’s a considerable overage. You’re maxed out at 25% being 368 feet and you’re asking for 1000. These are prepared by you, I’m sure.

Mr. Brown: Hold on, 25% would be roughly 500 sq. ft. 

Mr. Hughes: I’m guessing that you filled in these, that’s what you have on the paper.

Ms. Gennarelli: That form is from the Building Department.

Mr. Brown: This is from the Building Department, right, we didn’t fill this out.

Mr. Hughes: Well, that’s the calculations that we were presented with and they are way over, all of them. I mean, like way over. You’re allowed 368 feet by the formula, you’re asking for 995. 

Mr. Brown: The Building Department has the existing residence at what, 1475?

Mr. Hughes: Yes. You told us 21. So, there is something wrong here with your calculations or what went on in the permitting process. If you’d like you can take a look at that.

Mr. Brown: O.K. That’s the first I’ve seen of this.

Mr. McKelvey: What are you basing on, the 2157?

Mr. Manley: Mr. Brown? 

Mr. Brown: Yes.

Mr. Manley: I think what they were saying is that Building Department has 1475 sq ft for the dwelling.

Mr. Brown: For the existing dwelling, right.

Mr. Manley: On your application you put that the current square footage of the existing dwelling is 2157.

Mr. Brown: Right. That’s based upon our measurements of the building, the existing building. We did the addition plans and an upgraded septic for this, so …

Mr. Manley: Is it possible that maybe the Town doesn’t have an addition that maybe was put on the home?

Mr. Brown: Again, this is the first I’ve seen of the Town’s calculations so, yes that could be.

Chairperson Cardone: But if it had a Building Permit the Town would have that on records.

Mr. Hughes: Is that what you have on the Board?

Mr. Brown: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: Which is correct, which square footage?

Mr. Carbone: The 2175 is correct. I’m not sure where they got that 1400 sq ft.

Mr. McKelvey: If it’s 2157 you’re allowed just about 540. So you’re going to be 1255 over.

Mr. Brown: If it’s 21 then we would be allowed roughly 700 because it’s 25% of the total. Not 25% of the existing if I  …

Mr. McKelvey: It’s 25% of the existing.

Mr. Brown: Is it?

Mr. Hughes: It is.

Mr. McKelvey: Right, Jerry? 25% of the existing.

Chairperson Cardone: 25% of the total.

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, Code Compliance Supervisor. The section of the Code that pertains to Accessory Apartments 185-d specifies that the size of an accessory structure per Zoning regulations shall be a minimum, or excuse me, at least is the exact wordage of 450 sq. ft. with a maximum or without exceeding 25% of the existing structure.

Mr. Brown: (inaudible) …the existing structure?

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Mr. Brown: O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: You’re asking about double of what you’re allowed.

Mr. Brown: Again, understood, the existing house is small. The addition is for a family member that needs to move in for care purposes and you know again this is not something that’s going to be rented or anything else, it’s in the family.

Mr. Hughes: Are there any ADA complexities that are to be addressed in this situation?

Do you need ramps or anything for a special medical need, or …?

Mr. Carbone: We are building in some senior citizens facilities for my mother when we do this. The reason we’re building this is for my mom. I am moving back into the home so I can stay there and take care of my mom. This is her home. I’m moving back in, we’re putting the addition in so I can move in there and stay there with my family and my mom is going to stay in the new addition. When we do all the new building everything there is going to be made with wide doors with handicap, single floor so that in the event, down the road, she is 78 now. In the event down the road when that is needed everything will be there for her. 

Mr. Donovan: May I just interrupt for a second? Mr. Canfield, I just wanted to make sure I have clarification, just taking a look at 185-38 b 5 which says the accessory apartment must contain at least 450 sq ft and not more than 25% of the gross floor area of the entire building that would be with the addition.

Mr. Brown: With the addition, that would be my understanding too.

Mr. Donovan: I think, at least I was confused if we were talking about the existing without the addition but I think the calculation would be with the additions.

Mr. Hughes: That’s right.

Mr. Brown: Right, 25% of the total finished building area which, who knows, is not how it’s calculated on the Building Department sheet.  

Mr. Canfield: I think the key word is the entire dwelling being inclusive of the addition.

Mr. Donovan: But it does seem to me we have a discrepancy between Building Department records which show the house as one size and the application which shows it as a different size and I don’t know if we can scale off on what the drawing shows but we’ll need clarification of that since the Building Department records indicate something else and I don’t know whether, is there an addition to this house? I don’t know if we’re counting in it to be a screened in porch? Is that included in the calculation? Is there a permit for that porch? We don’t know the answer to that obviously. 

Mr. Canfield: Yeah. Unfortunately, I didn’t review these plans, Mr. Mattina did, but that’s not what … (inaudible) The drawing that was submitted was just for the addition. I don’t have in front of me what (inaudible) of the existing structure (inaudible)

Mr. Brown: Right.

Mr. Canfield: I think that’s where the difference is.

Mr. Brown: Well that’s on the site plan, he’s looking at the actual construction plans for the addition. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you have a ruler that you can scale that building with?

Mr. Brown: No.

Mr. Canfield: If I may, if we have a little time? I can certainly calculate this. But I have to go next door and get a scale.

Mr. Hughes: It’s 1” to 20 ft, do you have a ruler?

Mr. Canfield: No.

Chairperson Cardone: I have another question, the structure that’s in the back of the house, if you face the house to the left it’s in the back, that appears to be where you want to put the addition, what is going to happen with that? How is that going to be, is that going to be incorporated into …?

Mr. Brown: That’s going to be removed.

Chairperson Cardone: That’ll be removed?

Mr. Brown: Correct. The screened in porch.

Mr. Carbone: The separate garage?

Mr. Brown: No, the screen porch.

Mr. Carbone: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: So, that will be all taken off and then the addition is put approximately in that area then over more?

Mr. Brown: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: Are there other questions, or for Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Manley: Is there going to be a basement in the addition?

Mr. Brown: No, the addition is going to be a slab on grate construction.

Mr. Manley: And, it’ll be 1-story? 

Mr. Brown: 1-story, right. Again, for accessibility.

Mr. Hughes: And that’s right here where this porch is now.

Mr. Brown: It takes up part of the porch but protrudes more towards the wherever the picture is taken from … in that particular area.

Mr. Hughes: For the Board, this is the picture I am referring to here, with that porch. But, my question is, is this going to be on grade and grade is going to be on the top of this concrete here, how are you going to do that? Are you going to fill that in?

Mr. Brown: Between the addition and the house we shown several steps, so the addition will be at grade again for accessibility.

Mr. Hughes: … then come down to the ground level here?

Mr. Brown: Correct, yes.

Mr. Hughes: So, how many people are going to end up of living in this place after all the dust settles?

Mr. Carbone: One, in the addition will be one.

Mr. Hughes: And the existing house?

Mr. Carbone: It would be three, myself, my wife and my stepson.

Mr. Hughes: And, it’s just your mother that lives there now?

Mr. Carbone: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: I see you have a 50% overage for your leech field and all of that, what type of tank do you have in there now?

Mr. Carbone: Right now there is a 1000-gallon tank.

Mr. Hughes: So, you’re going to have 4 bedrooms all together?  

Mr. Carbone: Three.

Mr. Brown: No, actually they’re going to convert an existing house; they’re going to convert that to a two bedroom so it will be maintained as a three total. Which means the septic as designed is sufficient however to accommodate in the future if ever needed we made sure that we could support a 4 bedroom septic on this particular lot. So the bedroom count is not going to increase, in other words, the existing residence will be brought from a three bedroom down to a two bedroom and then the addition is a one-bedroom addition. 

Mr. Hughes: Will a 1000-gallon tank ride on a three bedroom or do you have to go up to? 

Mr. Brown: 1000-gallon is sufficient for a three bedroom, yes.

Chairperson Cardone: What is going to happen to that third bedroom that exists right now? You say you are going to convert it to a?

Mr. Brown: Two of the bedrooms will be combined into one, one larger bedroom. The bedrooms in the existing house are all small and again his mother lives there alone. With him and his wife moving in they are going to take two of the bedrooms, combine them into one larger one that will be essentially the master bedroom.

Mr. Manley: Is there going to be a separate kitchen, separate entrance for the proposed accessory?

Mr. Brown: Yes, yes. I have actually plans for that I can distribute if needed.

Mr. Manley: If you have that, I’d like to look at that please.

Mr. Brown approached with plans.

(Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: Do you have Town water there?

Mr. Carbone: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: Are you hooked up to it?

(Inaudible)

Ms. Eaton: Are you hooked up to the Town water?

Mr. Carbone: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: It says here you’re removing the existing porch before (inaudible) but you’re adding a new screened (inaudible) 

Mr. Carbone: Yes, on the front it should show on the drawing if you’re looking it from the back on the left side there is going to be a small porch added on, yes.

Mr. Manley: Will there be an entrance from the apartment into the main house?

Mr. Carbone: Yes, there will be.

Mr. Manley: So, there will be a common doorway in between the two?

Mr. Carbone: Correct, yes.

Mr. Hughes: I have one other thing. Do you have provision for off street parking?   

Mr. Carbone: Yes, there is a driveway in the back, we have a one-car garage that’s attached to the house and there is also a two-car garage that’s in back of the house. It’s an older garage but it’s still usable.

Mr. Hughes: So you have room to put two or three cars off the street?

Mr. Carbone: Yes, we do.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Mr. Canfield, do you?

Mr. Canfield: The total square footage of the structure with the addition is approximately 2185. Two thousand one hundred and eighty five square feet, 25% of that would be total allowable area 546 sq ft. And, that’s 2-story? O.K., I wasn’t aware of that, ok. If that’s the case then the … oh, this is just 2-story? O.K., hold on, let me recalculate then. O.K. you have to understand we are working off a ‘site plan’ not building plans here but in any event the existing 2-story structure with a 1-story addition totals 3310 sq ft gross floor area, 25% of that is 827 sq ft allowable. The addition 1-story appears to be 810 sq ft, which is below the allowable 25%. So I believe the variances requested then would be just not a variance but a Special Use Permit.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: Special Use Permit.

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: But the variance two is eliminated.

Mr. Donovan: Well, there is only one variance requested.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: It’s a Special Use Permit and an area variance, so.

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: Are you going by 185​​-38-C?

Mr. Canfield: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: For Special Use Permit, yes.

Mr. Hughes: All right, now is the applicant aware of the conditions of that?

Mr. Donovan: You would have to ask them.

Mr. Hughes: Well, would it be permissible for you to read it to them?

Mr. Donovan: It sure would be.

Mr. Hughes: I think we should give them that advisement; we don’t want to walk into a blind alley here. 

Mr. Donovan: So, just for the Subdivision C requirements? The regulation related to Accessory Apartments is set forth in Section 185-38 of the Town Zoning Ordinance. Subdivision C imposes some conditions; there are four of them. The first one is why you’re here tonight but number one. I’ll read them all. Accessory Apartments shall require Special Permit approval from the Zoning Board of Appeals in accordance with this chapter. Subparagraph C-2, such approvals shall be renewed by each subsequent owner of the lot to determine that the conditions of the original approval remain applicable. Subparagraph C-3, the Zoning Board of Appeals may determine that such approval should not be renewed if it finds that the purposes of the original approval are not or will not be met by a new owner of the lot. And Subparagraph C-4, I’m going to delete that, that’s for a pre-existing Accessory Apartment, so.

Mr. Hughes: Just so you understand that.

Mr. Carbone: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: What happens upon the sale of that house, does everything die, or?

Chairperson Cardone: The new owner would have to come back here.

Mr. Donovan: Come back here.

Mr. Hughes: For a renewal of the Special Permit application.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. that’s what I wanted you to understand about this.

Mr. Carbone: O.K. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you.

Mr. Carbone: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions?

Mr. Hughes: We have 810 ft or 990 ft?

Mr. Brown: I, can I see that?

Mr. Hughes: It says 995 ft on the sheet that I have, you said it was 810? And that’s within the limits. I have nothing further then. Just to clarify those numbers for the record.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions? I’ll entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Kunkel: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call – 

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

    



Brenda Drake - Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Brown: Thank you. 


(Time Noted - 7:30PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                              (Resumption for decision: 9:39 PM)

ANN CARBONE



66 D’ALFONSO ROAD, NBGH







(101-6-13) R-2

Applicant is seeking a Special Use Permit for an Accessory Apartment and an area variance for the apartment floor area.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Ann Carbone at 66 D’Alfonso Road seeking a Special Use Permit for an accessory apartment and an area variance for the apartment floor area. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. And I would just like to clarify something here. That figure has been reworked and it is 6% over on the gross floor area. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I think with a more clear picture now with the reworked figures it makes a lot more sense than what was represented to begin with.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. Donovan: I’m sorry, if I could interrupt for a second? Because this is also a Special Use Permit you’ll need a negative declaration on that aspect of the application.

Chairperson Cardone: Exactly. This is an Unlisted Action under SEQRA. Do I have a motion for a negative declaration?

Ms. Eaton: I’ll make a motion.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor?

Aye All                                

(Brenda Drake – Absent)

Chairperson Cardone: That motion is carried. Do we have discussion on this? 

(No response)

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. Kunkel: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call – 

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Brenda Drake - Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried.

(Time Noted – 9:41 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:30 PM) 

LYNNE & JOHN DELESKY

42 PROSPECT HILL ROAD, WLKL







(1-1-27.42) A/R ZONE    

Applicant is seeking area variances for maximum height, maximum allowed square footage for accessory structure (garage) and maximum allowable footage of four (4) vehicles to keep a prior built detached garage.                                                

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Lynne & John Delesky, 42 Prospect Hill Road, Wallkill.  

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Delesky: Good evening. John Delesky, Lynne Delesky, 42 Prospect Hill Road. We had a new assessment this spring and the Tax Assessor noted that we had a newly inventoried garage. We didn’t realize we didn’t have a newly inventoried garage. We have had the garage for twenty years. We built our house, completed in ‘87; garage was built right after that. As far as we knew with our builder we had all our paperwork, documents, whatever. We did have our Building Permit for our house; we thought that the garage was there also in his paperwork. We got our C.O. thought that we were all set. But when we saw the Tax Assessor, he said no, we have no record of your structure. So, we went and applied for a Building Permit as he instructed us. It was denied and we supposedly need (3) three variances for a height variance, our garage is 16 and the maximum was 15. They believe we can get (6) six cars in it, the maximum is (4) four cars and 1000 ft for a garage and we have 1800, it’s 36 x 50. So, we’re hoping we can keep our garage. It fits in well with our neighborhood. I mean, we’ve had no complaints from neighbors at all and it is surrounded by trees on (3) three sides. It doesn’t stick out as an eyesore or anything, it blends in nice. I mean, it supposedly, maybe by square foot you could get (6) six cars in it but, there’s overhead doors in the front, and a …

Chairperson Cardone: Two of those are double doors, correct?

Mr. Delesky: There’s two 10 x 10’s, and one 10 x 14 and 10’s are nice to back into where you don’t take your mirrors off on your car and the center one you could put (2) two cars but one goes first, then the other goes and you pull them out in the same order.

Mrs. Delesky: We do have an aerial picture; I’d just like to show you. It kind of shows how the house and the area fit in. That was taken in the ‘80’s.

Mr. McKelvey: You also have a sliding door on that building.

Mr. Delesky: We do, we do.

Mr. McKelvey: That would be considered another garage door. Right, Jerry?

Mr. Delesky: Well, it could be, it’s only 6-½ ft tall, we’ve never parked anything in there, I mean.

Chairperson Cardone: What is the reason for such a large structure with all the doors?

Mrs. Delesky: We store a boat in there and our (3) three vehicles and we also have some firewood stored in there and we have our lawnmowers and garden equipment in there.

Chairperson Cardone: And, how many vehicles do you usually have in there.

Mr. Delesky: There is (3) three.

Mrs. Delesky: Three.

Mr. Delesky: Three and our boat. We just thought we were set with paperwork and our Tax bill. We looked at that and it doesn’t say like house and garage or house only or any of that stuff, so we were going along thinking we were legal. 

Chairperson Cardone: And you say it was built the same year as the house?

Mr. Delesky: Early ’87.

Chairperson Cardone: But after you got the C.O. for the house.

Mr. Delesky: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Questions from the Board?

Ms. Eaton: What’s the size of the parcel this is on?

Mr. Delesky: 2.6 acres.

Mr. Manley: Is the home currently up for sale?

Mr. Delesky: It may be. We’re testing the waters, which aren’t too good. 

Mr. Manley: I was just wondering how it came about that you realized that there wasn’t…

Mr. Delesky: We did a sub-division. And the Tax Assessor came out to reassess our house on 2.6 acres. 

Mr. McKelvey: But you do have a For Sale sign there?

Mr. Delesky: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Was this the parent parcel of that whole area there, is that what’s going on here? This is your lot here, was this the parent parcel of this whole thing?

Mr. Delesky: Right this was the parent parcel here.

Ms. Eaton: Did you build the house or did you buy the house?

Mr. Delesky: We had it built.

Ms. Eaton: You had it built, when you owned the property, when you bought the property?

Mr. Delesky: We owned the property for maybe a year.

Ms. Eaton: And, you had to get a Building Permit for the house?

Mr. Delesky: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: But you didn’t know that you had to get a Building Permit for the garage?

Mr. Delesky: No, no. We did part of the work on the house, the builder part of the work. I mean, we did rough plumbing and sheet rock and we thought the garage was …

Ms. Eaton: The garage is as big as the houses are.

Mr. Delesky: Not anymore it doesn’t seem like though.

Ms. Eaton: It’s bigger than mine.

Mr. Manley: How large is the, who actually did the work to build the garage? Is that yourself or was that the?

Mr. Delesky: No, it was the builder, Rowe Builders.

Mr. Manley: The same builder that built the house built the garage?

Mr. Delesky: Yes, yes.

Ms. Eaton: Is there a sliding door on the side of the garage?

Mr. Delesky: Yes, there is, it’s about 10 feet x 6-½ feet high.

Mr. McKelvey: Do you have a vehicle that would go through that side sliding door?

Mr. Delesky: It’s only 6 ½ feet, I mean I suppose you could park a compact car in there but it’s not ideal.

Mr. McKelvey: Your cars wouldn’t fit?

Mr. Delesky: Yeah, a compact car, but I mean it’s, we’ve never used it to park a car.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, but it still on the building, that’s the problem.

Mrs. Delesky: What about the lot line?

Mr. Delesky: The new lot line is I believe 10 feet off the side of the garage, so I don’t think you could really drive into the garage.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board?

Mr. Manley: Just one for Mr. Canfield, what is the, I don’t know Jerry off the top of my head, the distance from the property line to a structure or an accessory structure?

Mr. Canfield: 10 feet and I believe this complies.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: It’s really quite a bit over, it’s almost double in the area.

Mr. Delesky: Yeah.

Chairperson Cardone: And, you’re allotted 1000 and it’s 1800.

Mr. Delesky: We realize that from the variance. It was not our intention when we had it built, I mean we didn’t know.

Ms. Eaton: I am quite surprised your builder wasn’t aware of that since he had to get a Building Permit for your residence.

Mr. Delesky: Yeah.

Mr. McKelvey: You didn’t have a C.O. for the garage though?

Mr. Delesky: No, no, when the Tax Assessor said we didn’t have it, we looked and no.

Chairperson Cardone: What are the possibilities of somehow making it smaller?

Mr. Delesky: Well, now it’s (4) four walls now, if you’re taking a wall off, you know you’re changing the structure of the building. If you come out there it’s a nice garage, I mean it’s not dilapidated.

Chairperson Cardone: I know, I’ve seen it.

Mr. McKelvey: We were all there. We all go and inspect the property.

Mr. Delesky: Oh. O.K.

Mr. Manley: I guess the one thing that, I guess the question that I am grappling with is, in fairness to people that go out and seek out a Permit and can’t build anything more than a certain size because they have to stay within the regulation, in fairness to those individuals, what would be the reason to grant your variance when you didn’t, you know, follow the proper procedures. It’s like driving a car without a driver’s license almost. I mean, do you let somebody like that go because they just didn’t know that they needed a driver’s license or do you give them a break? I guess that’s what I am really grappling with, so can you maybe …?

Mrs. Delesky: Well, we thought that we did have the paperwork that we needed. The builder had gotten everything that he needed for the house and proceeded to build a house and when he was done with the house he went on and worked on the garage and we didn’t really think about having to get another, separate C.O. We figured he took care of it. But, apparently he didn’t and you know, all these years, it really doesn’t specifically say on our Tax bill what we’re being taxed on. So, you know, with the amount of taxes we just assumed we were paying for the garage and the house. It was a complete surprise to us when we got the new assessment and the garage was un-inventoried. So, it’s not like we knowingly didn’t get the Permits that were required.

Mr. McKelvey: I think what he is saying though is if somebody came in and wanted to build a new garage the same way you want, we can’t do it because we would open up a can of worms and have to give it to everybody that came in.

Mrs. Delesky: Hmm, hm.

Mr. McKelvey: Once you’ve set a precedent, we’ve got a problem.

Mr. Delesky: You variance says about (4) four cars versus (6) six about parking the car in the slider, I mean, we never parked the car in a slider. We don’t really need the slider. I mean, we could…

Mr. Manley: But that may be the case for yourself but once you grant the variance it follows with the property. So, the next person that buys your home may decide that want to put (6) cars in there or (5) cars and that actually violates the Code, so.

Mr. Delesky: I could close the slider off, I mean, we don’t use it to park anything in there. I could take the slider off and wall it in.

Mr. Hughes: Well part of the situation here isn’t so much of how many doors you have or wide they are. If you only had (1) one it and you have the ability to park (6) six cars in there, it’s considered a (6) car garage. So the door isn’t the determining factor here on what we have to rule with. The fact is, is with a 50 foot structure, 32 feet long, you probably get (10) cars in there or (12) twelve with the square footage if you had the right door on it. So, you’ve got almost double what you’re supposed to have by Law in any respect. And now, with a reduced lot with the sub-division you have more area coverage on the lot than you had 2.6 acres you say in residue. You still have a 50 x 32 building covering part of that lot. I have nothing else. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments from the Board? Do we have any questions or comments from the public? If not, I will entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call – 

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Brenda Drake - Absent

 (Time Noted - 7:45 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                              (Resumption for decision: 9:37 PM)

LYNNE & JOHN DELESKY

42 PROSPECT HILL ROAD, WLKL







(1-1-27.42) A/R ZONE    

Applicant is seeking area variances for maximum height, maximum allowed square footage for accessory structure (garage) and maximum allowable footage of four (4) vehicles to keep a prior built detached garage.                                                

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Lynne & John Delesky at 42 Prospect Hill Road, Wallkill seeking an area variance for maximum height, maximum allowed square footage for an accessory structure, maximum allowable storage of 4 vehicles to keep a prior built detached garage. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do I have discussion on this application? This had approximately 1800 sq ft, which was almost double the allowable. 

Mr. Hughes: Yes, this is that one that was done with out the Permits and it was picked up later on? I think we wrung it out pretty good about what’s there and what should be there. I don’t know if the applicant would be willing to alter the size of what’s there?

Chairperson Cardone: I did ask that question I did not get a positive response to that.

Mr. Manley: Well it’s definitely well over what this Board has ever approved in the past and that was even on a legal structure that was legally placed there. It presents, in my opinion, a dangerous precedent.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have motion for a disapproval on this application?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. McKelvey: Second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call – 

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Brenda Drake – Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried. 

 (Time Noted – 9:43 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:57 PM) 

CYNTHIA FENNELL


39 SOUTH DIX AVENUE, NBGH







(72-9-4.1) R-3

Applicant is seeking an area variance to build an accessory structure (shed) in a front yard, has two front yards.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Cynthia Fennell, 39 South Dix Avenue.  

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Ms. Fennell: Good evening, my name is Cynthia Fennell and this is my husband Franklin Fennell and we are asking for a variance tonight for a 8 x 8 shed but why we didn’t get the Permit was because we are considered having two front yards.

Chairperson Cardone: And actually where you are locating the shed would actually be in the rear of the house.

Ms. Fennell: Yes, maam.

Chairperson Cardone: It’s just that there is a street back there also.

Ms. Fennell: Yes, maam.

Mr. McKelvey: I noticed when I was there your next-door neighbor had a garage facing one street and house facing the other. 

Chairperson Cardone: If I remember correctly there was something there already that you would be removing and then putting in the new shed.

Ms. Fennell: Yes, maam. Yes, I heard from the previous owner that they had a shed and they take it down. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? I will read the report from the Orange County Department of Planning. The proposed action has no significant Countywide or Intercommunity impact. Local determination.

Ms. Fennell: Thank you, maam.

Chairperson Cardone: I will entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion.

Mr. Manley: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call – 

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Brenda Drake - Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

 (Time Noted - 7:59 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                              (Resumption for decision: 9:50 PM)

CYNTHIA FENNELL


39 SOUTH DIX AVENUE, NBGH







(72-9-4.1) R-3

Applicant is seeking an area variance to build an accessory structure (shed) in a front yard, has two front yards.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Cynthia Fennell, 39 South Dix Avenue, Newburgh seeking an area variance to build an accessory structure a shed in a front yard, the lot has two front yards. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: I think she stated that before they bought the house they were told there was a shed there that was taken down. So they are just adding it back up.

Chairperson Cardone: And, looking at it, it’s obviously in the backyard.

Mr. Manley: It doesn’t appear to have really a significant, in my opinion, impact on the property.

Chairperson Cardone: No. Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

Mr. Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion we approve.

Mr. Kunkel: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes





Brenda Drake: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. 

(Time Noted – 9:51 PM)   

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                               (Time Noted – 7:45 PM) 

ARTHUR LANZER



9 CHAPEL ROAD, NBGH







(14-1-76.2) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for maximum allowable height to build a new single-family modular residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant is Arthur Lanzer, 9 Chapel Road, Newburgh.  

Ms. Gennarelli: All mailings are in order.

Mr. Manley: Madam Chair, before we start, I had recused myself previously on this matter, I’ll be doing the same for the reapplication.

Chairperson Cardone: You may proceed.

Mr. Lanzer: Good evening. Thank you very much for letting me come in front of the Board to ask for a variance. I am asking for one variance tonight, it’s a height variance for a new home that I am trying to build for my family, for myself to move there. Its on 9 Chapel Road is the address, where the actual house will be located. The house, the property that was developed or I’m trying to develop is a tough piece of property to work and when we first started to do the drawings for the house, the garage was supposed to be on the first floor level and once we got going with the actual project and we started to get down to, it looked very good on paper but once you got down to looking at it, at the site you came to realize that the wetlands that were going to be opened which is going to remain open but the driveway would actually have to increase on a rapid rate to get up to the first floor. So, this would leave like a 7-foot drop into the wetlands. So, it was me that actually suggested, as a Fireman, that the egress and regress off the property would be dangerous in that location for the oil truck or a delivery truck or anything like that coming in and off the property. So I asked let’s try and do it in the basement. It wasn’t actually to increase the size of the house. It was due to a safety factor that I felt for people coming in and out. When you look now at the property, the way it was designed with the actual garage in the basement, it would only be like a 1-foot drop into the wetlands off the driveway. So, it definitely a lot safer than having a 7-foot drop into the driveway. Also, the height of the house when I went down to try and ask for the Building Permit everything has been approved so far. I went down to try and ask for the Building Permit that’s when they pretty much raised the red flag and what happened is they said that I by putting garage in the basement I exposed the front wall of the foundation to the road, to the actual road. So that’s what made the house too tall. The maximum allowable height is 35 ft with the actual driveway going straight inside the house it would be 41 ½ ft. So I am looking for a 6-½ ft variance for just the height of the house. Not the size to make the house bigger in any square footage, just to keep the actual roofline the same in all the drawings that were already done. I’ve spent thousands and thousands of dollars on the drawings already, you know, for the house so to keep the drawings all the same that’s why I’m looking for the variance. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me; just for the record could you identify yourself?

Mr. Lanzer: Arthur Lanzer, the homeowner.

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Lanzer: Oh, when I even was talking with the Building Department they said if the driveway would go into the side of the house that they said it would be O.K. because I could actually like cover up the front wall of the foundation. They said because it’s not being exposed to the front out to the actual to the road. But the problem with that is I have a recessed front door which I only have a 12 ft wide garage so I couldn’t put the actual driveway into the side of the house. You know to have it actually enter the side of the house so just because of the property the way it’s being developed I’m really kind of like limited to the choices there. 

Ms. Eaton: What would be the problem with building it on a crawlspace?

Mr. Lanzer: The only reason, it would be really no problem with actually having it …

Do you mean the actual house itself on a crawlspace?   

Ms. Eaton: Yes.

Mr. Lanzer: The house was already developed with a full basement and all the drawings were already done for that. I didn’t say that it couldn’t be on crawlspace but we’re looking to have a full basement for storage for the house. 

Ms. Eaton: Just to clarify, I am seeing 9 and 11 Chapel Road on some of these drawings.

Mr. Lanzer: My regular home right now where I live is 9, it was subdivided so it’s an estimated where it’ll be and we just picked 11. The actual lot and section number is Section 14, Block 1, Lot 76.2 so that’s actually the official lot that you guys are looking at on the paper 76.2.

Mr. McKelvey: You were before us before …

Mr. Lanzer: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: … on this property?

Mr. Lanzer: Yes, trying to get the sub-division and the sub-division was granted due to the … I’ve been doing it over 2 ½ years now just trying to use the process as best I can and work with the process as best I can. It’s just been a long time, that’s all. 

Mr. Hughes: Well, here some other things that floating here that I don’t see on the list for the variances that are required and this property was varied before to do the sub-division. You’re shy almost 20,000 ft right off the bat on the lot requirement. You’re supposed to have 50 ft in the front yard and you only have 40. You’re supposed to have 30 on both sides and you barely have that. Your lot width is supposed to be 150 ft and you don’t have that and it goes on and on. I don’t see where those variances are … you’re asking for one variance on the sheet that I have and that’s just for the height. 

Mr. Lanzer: The variances before that were all granted already.

Mr. Hughes: On that sub-division?

Mr. Lanzer: The sub-division. 

Mr. Hughes: You knew going into this that this was a tight project. How deep is your basement?   

Mr. Lanzer: 8 foot.

Mr. Hughes: I agree with Ms. Eaton about considering the use of a crawlspace.

Mr. McKelvey: Jerry, do you remember …

Mr. Hughes: This thing has been varied to death before already before it got to this.

Mr. Lanzer: It was only due to the fact that the law had changed two years after we already had started the project. It’s almost been three years since I’ve actually begun the project.

Mr. Hughes: What law has changed?

Mr. Lanzer: No, the lot size was not changed, the law was changed but it was, most of those variances were…

Mr. McKelvey: It changed.

Mr. Hughes: But that was only West of the Thruway.

Mr. Lanzer: No, it was right in there. I was included in it. The R-1.

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, it changed to the R-1.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s why he came before us.

Mr. McKelvey: Do you remember what we granted variances for this property before, didn’t we?

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: I’m sorry, could you use the mic?

Chairperson Cardone: Could you repeat that for the record?

Mr. Canfield: I’m sorry. The property was originally R-3 which was changed to R-1. As this project went before the Planning Board all of the requirements were met and it was approved, O.K. The only variance that we see that is non-compliant is the building height.

Mr. Hughes: So what you’re saying in essence then is that all of those other variances were taken care of when they did the sub-division?

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct. It was all addressed at that time. 

Mr. McKelvey: Because he came before us.

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: So, now you’re going to be on Town water and you’re going to try an aerobic system on this lot.

Mr. Lanzer: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: You’d have 100 ft from what you’re supposed to have for that?  

Mr. Lanzer: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. I have nothing else. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public? Please take the microphone and state your name and address.

Mr. Greene: My name is Donald Greene; I live at 36 Chapel Road. My son would probably be here in favor of it too; he lives at 25 Chapel Road. But they are looking at a new fire truck so he’s tied up at the Firehouse. I see no problem with it. Like stated the properties were re-zoned which we don’t understand why, one side of Chapel Road was re-zoned at the time. No other parcels west of the Thruway were re-zoned but we have no problem with it. As far as height of the building goes, we’re the only Fire District now with a ladder truck 110 ft high and the new one will be a little shorter 100 ft high. So firematically it’s not a problem. Visually I don’t see that being a problem. There is a wetlands there. His system he’s putting in is pretty much almost, not quite the same, as my son put in in his house and it works very well. He is a good neighbor and I don’t think anyone on Chapel Road would have any problem with it. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Greene: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other comments from the public? 

Ms. Eaton: This will only be a two-bedroom house?

Mr. Lanzer: Right.

Ms. Eaton: And, you can’t change that? 

Mr. Lanzer: Unless they put sewer down there. They said if they sewer down there in the near future or late future or whatever future, then it would be possible. But at this time it would only be two-bedrooms.

Ms. Eaton: But it shows a room as an office space?

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you please use the mic? I’m sorry. It goes into the tape recorder. Thank you.  

Mr. Lanzer: Yes, it just would be a two-bedroom home. It’s just me, my wife and my son.

Ms. Eaton: Is there going to be a closet in that office space?  

Mr. Lanzer: No.

Ms. Eaton: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions. I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Just one moment, I have a report from the Orange County Department of Planning and the comments sent by the Orange County Department was the proposed action has no significant County wide or Intercommunity impact. 

Mr. McKelvey: Now I’ll make my motion to close the Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call – 

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Recused

Grace Cardone: Yes

Brenda Drake - Absent

Mr. Manley: Abstain.

Ms. Gennarelli: Abstained?

Mr. Donovan: Just for purpose of clarification, if you are recused then you are recused. 

Mr. Manley: I am abstaining from voting.

Mr. Donovan: If you recuse, then you don’t vote. You would be recused. If you get to abstain, then you stay on the Board but you don’t vote.

Mr. Manley: Thank you.

Mr. Lanzer: Thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

 (Time Noted - 7:57 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                              (Resumption for decision: 9:43 PM)

ARTHUR LANZER



9 CHAPEL ROAD, NBGH







(14-1-76.2) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for maximum allowable height to build a new single-family modular residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Arthur Lanzer at 9 Chapel Road seeking an area variance for the maximum allowable height to build a new single family modular residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do I have discussion on this application?

Mr. McKelvey: We did have a neighbor speak in favor and said that he is a good neighbor and it would fit in well. 

Mr. Hughes: There was also the discussion of the possibility of a crawl space instead of the extra variance for the height limitation. I don’t know if the applicant would be willing to consider that?

Mr. Lanzer: May I speak about it?

Chairperson Cardone: Please.

Mr. Lanzer: In reviewing what you were saying I was discussing it with some of the people here. I think that the same exact problem would occur with a crawl space. What would happen is, the reason why we’re trying to actually put this garage in the basement so that it would be a nice easy access in and out of the property. To have a crawlspace the actual property would still be raised and the driveway would still continue to go up and there would be that safety factor of dropping off into the wetlands. That’s what I was really concerned about right from the beginning. Because actually then it would be back up if it was a flat piece or a crawlspace, minimal crawlspace, the driveway would increase and go up which would then give that drop off into the wetlands that’s the only reason originally to actually drop that down to make it just straight so it just went from the road down and then back right into the house straight kind of area, if that makes any more sense? Plus that entire foundation is covered in all three sides except for just the one section that’s open for the garage. So I mean it actually, it complies with the Town regulations on all three sides and even portions of the front where it will be up near the front door, it’s just the fact of where the garage is that just enters into the garage. It’s the garage that’s actually creating the havoc, so to speak. 

Mr. Hughes: That’s why we’re asking you to eliminate it.

Mr. Lanzer: Well then that would bring the garage back up.

Mr. Hughes: If you are eliminating the garage how is the garage going to be back up, if there is no garage?

Mr. Lanzer: Oh, no garage whatsoever? 

Mr. Hughes: Crawlspace. That’s what we were talking about.

Mr. Lanzer: Oh.

Mr. Hughes: Crawlspace instead of the garage.

Mr. Lanzer: It’s only a 1-car garage, I was just …

Mr. Hughes: But, then you don’t need your height variance, you bring the house down to a reasonable level.

Mr. Lanzer: But, even before like when I said even if that, that house would be the exact same size. If I was to enter the side, say the garage was in the basement still and it was, I could build the house …

Mr. Hughes: We are not talking about a garage we are talking about a crawlspace. The garage is 8 feet.

Mr. Lanzer: I understand what you’re saying but the basement, if I was to enter into the side of the house I could build the house the exact same way it is right now. It’s because I’m entering into the front because it’s exposing the front wall foundation just to the rope that’s it.

Mr. Hughes: You are not adverse to going into the side of it, then? 

Mr. Lanzer: I can’t and the reason why is because I have a setback on the front door which that’s why I was explaining there’s only a 12 foot width to the garage. I couldn’t bring it in; I couldn’t bring the car into the side.

Mr. Hughes: Why, because of your stairwell?

Mr. Lanzer: On the drawings to the plans, there’s a setback to the front door so that makes this piece right here in the front where the garage is only 12 feet across. So if I was to come into the side, as long as that front wall would be covered up with dirt they said you’re good. It’s the only fact that it’s exposed to the front just to the road that’s it. It’s only because it’s exposed to the road that they are saying now you’re going 41 ½ feet instead of 35 but if it was to the side it would be fine. I could do it to the side I just can’t do it to the front but the problem on this piece of property with that house the drawings the way it is and everything else the way it’s done already I just can’t go in the side. Because the actual foundation wall, the foundation plan shows, the foundation wall I only have 12 feet, that’s it, I couldn’t put a car in there.

Mr. Hughes: Well we realize the constrictions of your property because we saw the plans and that was cut down from another chunk to begin with and the wetlands went up and down the road there. It’s not like that stuff creeped up on you overnight that’s been there all along.

Mr. Lanzer: I understand.   

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have any other discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: So you’re not willing to go with the crawlspace? 

Mr. Lanzer: No, I would try not to go with the crawlspace.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion to approve this application?

Mr. Kunkel: Yes, I’ll move for approval. I see no problem with the plan as presented.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  No

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Recused

Grace Cardone: Yes





Brenda Drake: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. 

(Time Noted – 9:50 PM)   

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                               (Time Noted – 8:00 PM) 

POLHAMUS (Sally) & CARSTROM (Susan)
65 BALMVILLE ROAD, NBGH






        

(43-3-31 & 34) R-1 ZONE 

Applicant is seeking area variances for maximum building coverage, maximum lot coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the existing side yard to build a rear addition on a 1-Family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: The next item was held over from the April 26th meeting, Polhamus & Carstrom at 65 Balmville Road.

Mr. Coppola: Good evening everyone, my name is Anthony Coppola. I am the architect who has prepared the drawings. I was here two months ago to, at the Public Hearing, to present this application for an addition to an existing single-family house for Sally and Pete Polhamus at 65 Balmville Road. Basically that night I presented what we’re doing, what we were doing then which is essentially the same as what we’re doing tonight. There was a clarification and several questions about their two lots that are shown on the site plan, there were questions about the second lot that night, about the pool and tennis courts and I believe at that meeting the Board decided to table a vote and let Jerry research I think the matter at that time was the Permits and the permitting of the existing pool and the existing tennis courts. Basically after that meeting I sat down with my clients again, we looked at everything closely and we really decided the information I had given the Board that night and the Board had asked me is if we would be willing to combine these lots. After the meeting was tabled it gave us an opportunity to reexamine everything and we basically decided that we would rather not combine the lots. So, our request is essentially the same as it was that night it’s for construction of a 1-story, 558 rear yard addition to the existing house and we’re asking for three variances which I’d like to go over in a couple of minutes and the clarification now is basically were we are asking only for the Board to consider the main lot that the house is on, not the second lot here. So, what I had done is about a month ago, we wrote the Board a letter and I’ll just go over that real briefly. Actually, let me go back to what we’re proposing to do first real quickly. Basically the purpose of this addition is so that Mr. & Mrs. Polhamus can move into this house where their mother resides right now and basically they all would live there and basically it’s to care for her so she doesn’t have to leave her house. So what we’re proposing is not a large addition, it’s going out 12’6 from the rear and 15’6 from the center portion here. There is an existing screened in porch that’s here. So it’s basically to expand an existing master bedroom here and to expand a second bedroom here by creating a sitting area and a handicap bath. So that’s the addition we are asking for, the house is essentially three bedrooms it’ll remain three bedrooms because this is an expansion of those existing bedrooms and then the rest of the house stays the same, kitchen, the dining room, the living room, the garage and the screened in porch. So what’s, after the last Zoning Board meeting two months ago, I wrote this letter to the Board and just to kind of review that basically the main item here is that we do not want, the owners basically want to preserve their rights to do something with this lot in the future. The lot right now that contains the tennis court and the lot that contains most of the swimming pool. So that lot is basically, we do not combine the lots that lots not basically part of this application.

Mr. Hughes: What’s the square footage on that lot?

Mr. Coppola: This lot, the lot that we’re asking is 24,000 sq ft, this lot I believe is like 30,000 sq ft, three quarters of an acre something like that, this one.

Mr. Hughes: And they are both R-1? Independent?

Mr. Coppola: Preexisting, they’re sub-divided. They exist that way. We are not asking for a sub-division. We are not asking for anything else. They exist that way right now. They are two separate lots.

Mr. Hughes: Hmm, hm.

Mr. Coppola: So that’s part of our request. Part of the reason and I think part of what the Board considered two months ago was the status of this existing pool. And what happens with this pool it’s basically the edge of the pool is on the borderline of the lot line. So the pool is effectively straddling both lots if you consider the fenced area around the pool. So we looked at this, it’s definitely non-conforming because it’s on two separate lots. At first we looked at possibly moving the lot line 10 feet to make that pool conforming but then we decided that in all fairness to what we were asking and to this Board that would basically make this lot more non-conforming because we’re taking away square footage from this lot from that 24,000 sq ft. So as painful as it is what we’re proposing to do is to remove the pool and effectively remove that violation so that the pool would be removed as part of the construction activity here. So that’s something that we’re offering here. The tennis court we weren’t quite sure of the history of this but what we decided to do is let’s make that official so Sally’s already gone down and applied for a Building Permit for a preexisting tennis court however that’s going to work.

Chairperson Cardone: Could I just interrupt you?

Mr. Coppola: Sure.

Chairperson Cardone: According to 185-43 a tennis court has to be an accessory structure and if there is no principle building on the lot how can it be an accessory structure?

Mr. Coppola: Well

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t see how you could get a Building Permit.

Mr. Coppola: Well maybe we have to come back for a variance for the tennis court but it’s already on a separate lot. So if the tennis court is non-conforming that’s what you’re saying right now it has to have a structure on it right now? Then, you know, I guess we’ll cross that bridge when we get to it. We’ve, and I don’t know if you have that Jerry? But we’ve 

Mr. Donovan: I think we’ve got to it, yeah.

Mr. Coppola: He has got to it?

Mr. Donovan: Oh, I think we’re there now.

Mr. Coppola: O.K.

Mr. Donovan: Because the accessory structures have to be on the same lot where the principle use is, you can’t have an accessory … the tennis court can’t be there.

Mr. Hughes: You cannot segment your approach to getting one approval on the other.

Mr. Coppola: This already, this is …

Mr. Hughes: Let me finish.

Mr. Coppola: This is already two separate lots right now, I’m not asking …

Mr. Hughes: I understand it’s two lots right now.

Mr. Coppola: O.K.  

Mr. Hughes: But we cannot approve something that’s going to create a substandard position or division and that’s what you’re asking us to do.

Mr. Coppola: Am I asking for that if that’s a separate lot right now?

Mr. Donovan: Well it’s not part of your application however we are looking at the map that’s in front us and what we see is a violation. You have a tennis court that’s built, so far as we can tell. And, Mr. Canfield there’s no Permits for the tennis court?

Mr. Canfield: The applicant has come in with an application.

Mr. Donovan: You’ll have to deny that?

Mr. Canfield: That’s correct. (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you use the mic please so we can get it on the tape?

Mr. Canfield: The Town needs to budget more mics. Excuse me. Yes, in response to your question the applicant has come in with an application for the tennis court. I have discussed it with Mr. Mattina and our intentions are to disapprove it based on the exact criteria Ms. Cardone was speaking of, that the tennis court is accessory to nothing else on the lot therefore we must disapprove it and send it back before this Board.

Mr. Coppola: Well, um…

Mr. Manley: I think that’s why when we went over this before I think the intent was to try and wrap everything into one nice piece by joining the lots and that solves 85% of the problem. I know that they are reluctant to do that because they maybe have plans in the future for that lot. But the plans for the future if they plan on maybe developing that lot probably more than likely if it gets developed they’re going to have to come before the Board anyway for a variance, so…

Mr. Coppola: Well, we looked at that cause that was part of our thinking. You know obviously it’s a preexisting lot; it’s small, too small right now to be a conforming lot. I think its 30,000 sq ft or maybe 35,000 sq ft and you need 40,000 sq ft to construct a house but I looked at the setbacks here, there’s an adjacent parcel that the owner’s have already approached their neighbors about purchasing half of that parcel to make their lot conforming. So you’re correct this lot either needs to be expanded or they need a variance. Now we don’t want to ask for a variance so they’ve already started down that road to see if they can make that lot a conforming lot. That’s a possibility. They may be able to do that. Buy, cause they’d only need to buy I think 5,000 sq ft, which this lot here is small, maybe 10,000 sq ft. So we looked at that, they can buy half of this lot make this conforming. The setbacks will work. It’ll be a skinnier house than it is kind of skinny and long. I checked the lot coverage. I checked the building coverage and it’s workable. They’d also have to do a septic system here. So that’s, but … we spoke to Greg Shaw and I’m not saying it’s a done deal but it’s something that they want to investigate and want to hold that possibility open. So I wasn’t aware of the accessory dwelling unit until (5) five minutes ago. But let me go through the rest of this and then we’ll have to come back to that. So right now I think I’m asking the Board to consider this lot. I mean our original application when we did our variance request and the size of this lot if you look all that information is what was in the variance request. Now there’s three items here on the variance request and I’d really like to get them clarified. There’s lot coverage, building coverage and side yard setback. I mistakenly asked for the lot coverage and Joe (Mattina) picked that up on my application and put that on in as part of the variance request. We do not need a variance for lot coverage. Required is 20% and we are proposing 18% so that is basically, I believe the definition of that is all the hard surfaces divided by the square footage of the lot. So I checked that today at my office, we’re under that it’s 4800 sq ft is the threshold of that. We are under that so I’m not asking for a variance for the lot coverage. I’m sure about that. He wrote that in because we asked for it. I think that’s why he picked that up that way. 

Mr. Hughes: Excuse me, Mr. Coppola.

Mr. Coppola: Hmm, Hm.

Mr. Hughes: Are your references now about this one particular lot that the house is on only?

Mr. Coppola: My reference has since been four months ago have only been about this lot, the calculations…

Mr. Hughes: We cannot consider that with that hanging and that hanging, that’s all speculation.

Mr. Coppola: Well I’m gonna come back to that but I’m, I’m...

Mr. Hughes: But we’ve already been through all of this.

Mr. Coppola: Can I continue?

Chairperson Cardone: Please.

Mr. Hughes: That’s up to our Chairperson.

Mr. Coppola: Thank you. So I’m not asking for a variance on the lot coverage. We do need a variance on the building coverage because it’s a preexisting lot. 10% is what’s required; we’re at 14%. But I also want to stress to the Board that we’re only asking for right now without this addition this is only a 12%, we’re at 12%, so that addition is only an additional 2% of what we’re asking for so that’s very small. The third thing I just want to ask and I run into this repeatedly when we do rear yard additions. What we’re proposing here is basically is a side yard setback and the existing side yard setback is 8.8 feet the proposed side yard setback is 9.8 feet. So it’s one foot greater that what is there now which is under the 30 foot which would be required as part of the Zoning. The lot tapers so we get more square footage as we go back further in the lot, even though I am building parallel to the, my existing side wall. Do I still need a variance, I re-read 185 today off your website and the wording there stipulates, as this Board is well aware, increasing the degree of non-conformity, does that increase the degree of non-conformity? 

Chairperson Cardone:  Yes.

Mr. Coppola: It, it, it does, I don’t think, I don’t understand how it does?

Mr. Hughes: Even if you go up on that same footprint it increases the non-conformity.

Mr. Coppola: Well I’ve asked Jerry (Canfield) that question in the past because sometimes we do second floor additions.

Mr. Hughes: Hmm, hm.

Mr. Coppola: But I guess I should ask you directly (to Jerry Canfield), you’re sure that increases the degree of non-conformity?

Mr. Canfield: Can I use that mic?

Mr. Coppola: Yeah, I’m sorry.

Mr. Canfield: Just for the record again so Mr. Coppola can hear it from all of us. The procedure is the Building Department interprets what’s in the Municipal Code. Tonight we are talking about the Zoning Section of it. Anytime an applicant disagrees with our interpretation you come before this Board. So I would just like to set the record straight that this conversation should not be an exchange of what I think. O.K. That’s why you’re here. And I mean that with the greatest respect. 

Mr. Coppola: Fair enough.

Mr. Canfield: O.K. Now I will attempt to explain how we consistently have enforced this. Currently you have the existing dimension?

Mr. Coppola: It’s 8.8.

Mr. Canfield: O.K. What is the linear dimension of the existing structure?

Mr. Coppola: It’s 30 feet along this line here.

Mr. Canfield: O.K.

Mr. Coppola: And then we’re adding 12 feet to that.

Mr. Canfield: So, currently you have 30 feet of non-conformity, correct?

Mr. Coppola: Correct. Well, at least more because of the garage.

Mr. Canfield: O.K. Correct. Now you’re adding on the addition, which is… what is the linear footage of the addition?

Mr. Coppola: 12 ½ feet.

Mr. Canfield: 12 ½ feet. So now we have a total of 30 and 12 ½ is 42.5 feet. We have increased the linear footage of non-conformity.

Mr. Coppola: O.K.

Mr. Canfield: That’s how we view it. So, perhaps if you want to question the Zoning Board …

Mr. Donovan: Then I could just … I’m sorry, because I was actually reading the provisions of the Code as you were speaking, but in 185-19-C it talks about reconstruction or enlargement of a building which does not house a non-conforming use, yours is a conforming use but is non-conforming as the district regulations for lot area, lot width, etc. That enlargement is permitted if the same does not increase the degree of or create any new non-conformity with such regulations. So I think we have a new non-conformity. So yes you need a variance for that.

Mr. Coppola: O.K. that’s fair enough. I appreciate Jerry (inaudible), your clarification on that. So I guess what I’m asking for is the two variances, the side yard setback and the building coverage. I’m positive that I do not need the lot coverage. So getting back to the large concern with the tennis court. The tennis court is non-conforming at this point because it does not have a dwelling unit on it? Is that what it would be?

Mr. Hughes: There has to be a primary residence.

Mr. Donovan: Yes. Just going back to the definition of accessory is a term applied to a use or structure clearly incidental to or subordinate to the principle building or permitted use on the same lot. And when you get to the section, which talks about tennis courts it says they are permitted as an accessory use only. They are not a principle permitted use.

Mr. Coppola: O.K. And going back to what you had done at the last meeting, which you (to Mr. Canfield) were going to look at that anyway, there was no permit granted years ago on that? For either the pool or the tennis court?

Mr. Canfield: No permits.

Mr. Coppola: O.K. So, all right, so basically our choices at this point is agree to go back to a combination of the lots or remove that non-conformity? Is that what I’m hearing?

Mr. Hughes: Maybe both. Because if you put both lots together then you’re tennis court is an accessory to the primary building and the pool is removed from the formula and there are other options which I’m sure our attorney could tell you.

Mr. Coppola: Well, you know I think, Sally I’m going to ask you to come up. Option number one is what we were asked to do two months ago. Remove the lot line, combine the lots and then we’re still left with a side yard variance request. The other variance request disappears, right? Then this becomes conforming, the pool becomes conforming we’re all said and done.

Mr. Donovan: As far as the Zoning Board is concerned.

Chairperson Cardone: Is that true Jerry (Canfield), isn’t that also a front yard?

Mr. Coppola: Uh, that front yard runs to the middle of the street.

Chairperson Cardone: It goes to, that’s on Chestnut Lane, doesn’t it front on Chestnut Lane?

Mr. Coppola: The house? Or the…

Chairperson Cardone: No. Not the house.

Mr. McKelvey: The tennis court.

Ms. Eaton: The tennis court.

Chairperson Cardone: So you would need a variance for two front, because this would be in a front yard.

Mr. McKelvey: Two front yards.

Mr. Coppola: Well, wait, it’s far enough from the front yard, the side yards maybe an issue, I’m not sure what you’re …

Mr. Hughes: Are you guys confusing pool and the court?

Mr. Coppola: I’m not sure what you’re …

Mr. Hughes: The pool is the front yard is what you’re saying?

Chairperson Cardone: No, no, I’m saying that Chestnut Lane makes that a front yard.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, it does.

Mr. Coppola: What can’t be in the front…?

Mr. Hughes: It’s because of the corner, it just a technicality, when you have a corner you have two front yards, just because it faces two streets.

Mr. Coppola: And, that has to be in the backyard is what you’re saying?

Chairperson Cardone: I’m saying it can’t be in your front yard; you have to come before the Board to get a variance for it.

Mr. Hughes: Is there a package we can present that would clean the whole thing up in one shot? I think that there is a little bit of confusion here but if this needs approval I am not willing to listen about speculation about acquiring more property and the possibilities there if there is a simple resolution to this thing. If your ulterior motive is to ultimately sub-divide later on, then what we’re talking about is all moot. 

Mr. Coppola: This is sub-divided right now. So

Mr. Hughes: I understand that.

Mr. Coppola: So, she would have the option to remove the tennis court, remove the pool and …

Mr. Hughes: But could you build on it then? Probably not.

Mr. Coppola: That’s not part of our request.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. But I don’t want you to paint yourself in a corner. If you think that removing the tennis court and think then I’ll make the subdivision the way it is that you can build there automatically, I don’t think you have enough square footage. 

Mr. Coppola: No, I’m going to go back to what I explained before …

Mr. Hughes: Hmm, hm.

Mr. Coppola: … to Mr. Manley, we’ve looked at this.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Coppola: I’ve sketched a house on this. We checked the front yard, the side yards, the lot coverage, the building coverage; the only thing that we’re short on is the lot size, which we’re 5,000 or 7,000 sq ft short. It may be possible that we can buy this and make this a conforming lot. That may happen, that may not happen, we don’t know what’s going to happen. But they want to preserve that right separately and in my mind it makes more sense and may have more value to do that if that’s going to happen.

Mr. Hughes: It’s an option.

Mr. Coppola: Right, not to come back to this Board and ask for a variance to do that, we don’t want to do that.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah, I’d feel more comfortable about doing it all at once if you’re going to do anything. We’re not really allowed to grant something that’s going to create a non-conformity.

Mr. Coppola: Well I understand that, the non-conformities have to be cleaned up once we leave here.

Mr. Hughes: Well if you were to reconfigure the lot lines or do a lot line change or anything else…

Mr. Coppola: We’re not doing that. We are not doing that. We are not proposing any lot line changes. That’s why we’re removing this pool cause we didn’t want to do that.

Mr. McKelvey: But if you buy the 5,000 extra you’re going to have a lot line change. Right, Jerry (Canfield), if they buy that side lot there?

Mr. Canfield: To increase the size of the other lot?

Mr. McKelvey: To increase the size of this one, buying 5,000 sq ft from a neighbor.

Mr. Coppola: The little piece over here. It’s basically, it’s all-hypothetical, to make this conforming they could possibly purchase that, with this which is another non-conforming lot that makes this conforming. 

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: There’s no buildings on that either?

Mr. Canfield: He’s correct.

Mr. Coppola: Yeah, this is vacant. 

Mr. Hughes: So, that would be annexed to the other property?

Mr. Coppola: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Yes? And the remainder go back this way?

Mr. Coppola: The other way.

Mr. Hughes: All right. I follow what you’re saying, I just, what you brought here and what you’re speculating on, is two different things.

Mr. Canfield: Just one thing, one comment on that. I don’t think it’s appropriate that my saying correct means, exactly, without seeing calculations and dimensions, O.K., you’d have to see if it did comply. Again, that’s the complexity of a hypothetical question. 

Mr. Coppola: So, I’m just trying to summarize, for Sally, where we’re at. This cannot be left the way it is without either removing the tennis courts or combining the lots.

Mr. Donovan: I think one of the things that the Board is going to look at relative to the building coverage issue that has to go into their deliberations, do you have any adjoining property that could be incorporated that would relieve your need to get that variance. 

Mr. Coppola: Right. 

Mr. Donovan: And, the answer to that is yes...

Mr. Coppola: Absolutely.

Mr. Donovan: …it is.

Mr. Coppola: We understand that but in all fairness we’re only asking for 2% there. It’s really not a large amount. And, I’m only asking for the building coverage, not the lot coverage. The lot coverage conforms with the lot that I have now. I just wanted to clarify that. I’m asking for the lot coverage and the side yard setback. So, do you understand where we’re at? (to Ms. Polhamus) I mean we can ask for this to be tabled too, that’s fine and …

Ms. Polhamus: Can I just say something?

Mr. Coppola: Absolutely.

Ms. Polhamus: I would just like to…

Chairperson Cardone: Could you just identify yourself first?

Ms. Polhamus: I am Sally Polhamus the owner of both of these separate lots. The reason that is problematic putting it together, one reason is that lot with the tennis court is facing Chestnut Lane; it’s in a totally different place than the Balmville Road lot. It’s a different ambience. It’s covered with trees, there’s a golf course across the street and it’s also very valuable, obviously. In our family we are not so rich that we can just say we don’t have to worry about that. It’s obviously a concern. And, the thing is that the Balmville Road lot has a ranch style house on it, it’s perfect for an older person because it’s all one level, doesn’t have a big yard. It’s this perfect little Balmville Road house. Putting it together, it doesn’t seem like a good use of land to me because as someone said there’s two front yards all of a sudden. What address is that lot going to have if you put it together? It just doesn’t, when you live there and you are there it doesn’t seem to be one lot. It seems like it should be two separate addresses and I understand everything you said. My father had no idea when he put that tennis court up that he was doing something wrong. And, I know that’s no excuse but now our family; I literally don’t know what to do because it just not make sense to us to combine those lots.  I think that we would take the tennis court away before we would do that because if we do eventually put a house on that lot we will obviously take the tennis court away. But it just seems silly because it’s (inaudible) but we do use it.

Mr. McKelvey: That was one of my questions, are you planning on selling that lot, the tennis court is on?

Ms. Polhamus: That lot is pretty much our retirement plan. My sister’s husband has died, my husband is sick. You know, that’s just one of the things that we have in the future to sell that lot and at that point either, I mean, it’s a possibility that my husband and I down the road might put a house on that lot and live in it but I tend to doubt it. I think it’s an investment at this point.

Mr. Coppola: I mean, as we looked at this, I think Sally is right. This actually has more value than this and they thought about, does it make sense to improve this house or just take this whole thing down and build something over here? That was something they looked at too. But, for the scale of what we’re doing here, we came back to the decision, yes; this did make sense to do. Irregardless of what happens if this lot is built on in the future or sold, I mean, that’s a possibility but I don’t think we’re going to come back to this Board and ask for a variance on that lot. I think what we’re saying is we feel strongly that we still want this addition here and to make this house, like Sally said, just comfortable for her and her mom. And then, I think that what we’re saying is if we are willing to remove the tennis court, we’d present our application that way. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any comments from the public? Please stand and would you hand the microphone to him, please. Please state your name and address.

Mr. Tierney: I’m Joseph Tierney III; I am here representing Ann Tierney.

Chairperson Cardone: Then you are probably going to read this letter that I have?

Mr. Tierney: Yes, I am going to read that out loud.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Tierney: It says, Dear ZBA, thank you for the opportunity to respond to the above application as I am unable to attend the meeting please consider this letter as my formal position on the matter. All this discussion of pools and tennis court lots entertaining, really since the owner isn’t applying to combine, then it really doesn’t influence the variance. They can remodel the interior without a variance. It’s a nice big ranch over 2000 sq ft, got three, four bedrooms on it. The norm and history of this immediate neighborhood is to dissuade and deny all variances from existing Building Codes. Specifically, this applicant, Polhamus, somewhat recently ironically stood before this Board vehemently denying other neighbors from obtaining variances stating it would detract from the character of the area. It is uncanny and hypocritical that they now feel, since it can benefit them, that variances are magically desirable here. The R-1 Zone currently requires 40,000 sq ft of land for a single family home. The subject home at 65 Balmville Road on 43-3-34 has about 48% deficiency from the current zoning requirement, having about 22,454 sq ft or about a half an acre. That’s reflecting in the Orange County Tax Records. The adjoining parcel they own, 43-3-31 which fronts on Chestnut Lane has about 29,842 sq ft of land or about .68 acres and it’s currently used as a tennis court and a pool. It’s unclear at this writing these uses on this separate parcel are even approved by the Town. I am going to leave out another paragraph since it seems it’s been addressed and the information circulated in the neighborhood that’s another, probably doesn’t need to be addressed because it sounds like Mrs. Nelson’s son and daughter-in-law are planning to live there with her so. But there is a concern about future requests for a two family approval or rental or sub-letting, which is again not in keeping with the current zoning. It appears that this applicant was asking for three variances though now he’s now saying it’s only two. In most of the discussions concerning something that’s not even on the variance, the other parcel that they refuse to combine. So, please understand that I am adamantly opposed to the approval of any and all variances to our Building Codes with regard to this application. There is no clear hardships here. I must depend on you to uphold current regulations. She says to contact her if you need. And, I also would like to add that had the applicants demonstrated a different position towards the neighborhood variances, our position would probably have been different. We believe in fairness and parity and return the favor in kind thus recommending denial for this request. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you please respond to the paragraph about the information circulating that they desire a separate apartment or living area of the building? Is that planned, a separate apartment?

Mr. Coppola: No.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, I’m sorry, could you use the mic please?

Mr. Coppola: Is that something in our application?

Chairperson Cardone: No, that’s something that’s in this letter. I am just asking for a response to that.

Mr. Coppola: No. There’s no separate apartment. This is a single-family house. With this addition it’s going to be approximately 2800 to 3000 sq ft, so there’s no two family house here at all in any way, shape or form.

Chairperson Cardone:  Do we have any other questions or comments from the Board? 

Mr. Coppola: I’ll just clarify; I think what we’re going to ask the Board to vote on. We will offer to remove not only the pool, that’s in my letter but we’ll offer to remove the tennis court that makes this a vacant lot and that makes that lot, the lot with the tennis court on it will then be a conforming lot cause it won’t have a pool that borders a house or the tennis court. Then, we’re basically asking for a very simple variance request. The variance request for the side yard to match what we have, I’m sorry, the side yard setback would be 9.84, 1 foot greater than the 8.8 that exists and we’re asking for a variance on the building coverage. We’re allowed 10%, that’s 2400, 24 sq ft, 2424 sq ft. We’re proposing with the addition 14%. Right now without this addition, we’re at 12%. So, it’s just a 2% increase in the building coverage.

Ms. Polhamus: May I speak?

Mr. Coppola: Sure.

Ms. Polhamus: The reason that we need the addition at all is because this house was built in the 50’s and it has one quite large living room and the bedrooms are quite small and there’s two little tiny bathrooms. So, what this is achieving is that my mother can have a bedroom with a handicapped bathroom kind of in the front of the house by the main living room and then my husband and I can in the back have a little living area where we can have a TV set and our own bathroom and be separate, give us some space.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you for clarifying. Any other comments from the Board? 

Mr. Manley: I just wanted, I’m a little perplexed with the lot coverage, you indicated you don’t believe you need a variance for that because you now fall under…? I’m just wondering? 

Mr. Coppola: It didn’t change. It was a mistake that I had three months ago. My calculations from the beginning have been just on that lot. So, my bulk table is 18% under the lot coverage, so we knew right from the beginning when we calculated this and presented it to the Building Department we did not include the other lot. So the 18% includes only the lot with the house on it that hasn’t changed it’s actually it’s my error it’s in the variance application and I think Joe picked up on it but when I looked at it again tonight it says it right on the Bulk Table what’s required is 20% what’s proposed is 18%. So that was my error. 

Mr. Donovan: Just for clarification from before too, we talked about the side variance and the building coverage and it’s also the increase of the degree of the non-conformity. 

Mr. Coppola: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes?

Mr. Tierney: I had some clarifications; I am not sure what Mr. Coppolas said so many things it’s kind of hard to keep track about 10%, 14%, 18%, 12%, 2%. When he’s talking about removing tennis courts and swimming pools that are already non-conforming and they are already being denied and turned back. I can’t follow all of this; it’s really getting too confusing for me. So, I mean if can just, because I’ve got to report back on what’s going on here and when the applications got three requests here and he says he only needs two and we’re talking all kinds of different numbers and square footage and it doesn’t always seem to jive, I’m not quite sure what all the statistics and numerical mathematics are so. I mean if it can be clarified so that everybody knows when you vote so I can run it back, that’s all.

Mr. Coppola: I’ll be happy to explain it again.

Mr. Tierney: I’d rather see it in writing rather than have you tell me in the numbers.

Mr. Coppola: It’s in writing.

Mr. Tierney: Up there?

Mr. Coppola: Right here.

Mr. Tierney: 18 and 19 and 20%?

Mr. Coppola: There’s the lot coverage.

Mr. Tierney: There’s the 20% maximum required, 18% proposed. Now is the proposal for the variance, you’re saying 2% doesn’t need?

Mr. Coppola: I can be under the maximum.

Mr. Tierney: So, you’re under, you don’t need the lot coverage? What you needed was the building coverage? 

Mr. Coppola: That’s correct.

Mr. Tierney: You’re proposing 14% variance for your building coverage?

Mr. Coppola: Yes, technically it’s, 10% is allowed - required, 14% is proposed. The variance is actually (inaudible) 

Mr. Tierney: So, then you wouldn’t need 10% cause that’s allowed, you need 4% and you’re making in it 14 because when you also mentioned about amount of square footage you said something about the addition would be like 500 but then you just mentioned that this house (inaudible) says it’s 2000 plus square feet would be around 3000 now. I lost you there.

Mr. Coppola: Yeah, it’s, well let me just clarify one thing. When you look at these two numbers, they are calculated by hard surfaces. So, the garage, the building coverage includes things like the garage …

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me, could you use the microphone?

Mr. Coppola: Sure, I always forget. The building coverage includes things like the garage and the screened in porch in the rear. So while the habitable square feet of this house is probably around 2100 sq ft, when I add the garage and I add the screened in porch in the rear that’s another 200 sq ft so probably what I have existing in terms of hard surfaces is about 26, 25, 2600 sq ft. I am proposing an addition of 558 sq ft that gets me to what I said around …(inaudible)

Mr. Tierney: That’s what you had before; only you went with the hard number after that, that’s the overall. 

Mr. Coppola: Yeah, it’s I can understand it’s confusing.

Mr. Tierney: But for tax purposes that would be the last one, right?

Mr. Coppola: All right, that’s up to the Tax Assessor.

Mr. Tierney: O.K. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions or comments? If not, I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. Manley: I’ll make the motion.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call – 

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Brenda Drake - Absent

Mr. Coppola: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

 (Time Noted – 8:40 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                              (Resumption for decision: 9:51 PM)

POLHAMUS (Sally) & CARSTRON (Susan)
65 BALMVILLE ROAD, NBGH






        

(43-3-31 & 34) R-1 ZONE 

Applicant is seeking area variances for maximum building coverage, maximum lot coverage and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the existing side yard to build a rear addition on a 1-Family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Polhamus and Carstron at 65 Balmville Road in Newburgh seeking an area variance for maximum building coverage, and increasing the degree of non-conformity of the existing side yard to build a rear addition on a 1-Family residence. I’d like a clarification on that maximum lot coverage.

Mr. Donovan: The plans submitted indicate that the maximum allowed is 20% and 18% is proposed.

Chairperson Cardone: So that is not needed?

Mr. Donovan: That’s correct.

Chairperson Cardone: I am asking for a clarification.

Mr. Donovan: That’s correct, unless the Board’s uncomfortable and wants that to be recalculated. But that’s what the Bulk Table has indicated.

Mr. Manley: And that has been checked by Code Compliance and they’re in agreement with that, that is accurate?

Mr. Donovan: That answer would be no?

Mr. Canfield: I can’t honestly say yes. Mr. Mattina looked at it and I think we were easily confused with all the submittals and I don’t mean to prolong this applications but if the Board feels they have an accurate depiction in front of them of what’s being submitted then we can recalculate it and get back.

Chairperson Cardone: I would like to reserve decision on that until we have more of a clarification on it.

Mr. Manley: In the event that that’s not correct and let’s say they really are over and they needed the variance then they’re going to have to come back again.

Mr. Hughes: Well then …

(tape ended, turned over and restarted)

Mr. Donovan: …keeping two separate lots an issue of the approval would be removing the tennis court, removing the pool and that the application was for the building coverage, the side yard and increasing the degree of non-conformity.

Mr. Hughes: Including the footprint infringement and the second story or just …

Mr. Donovan: Well I think what you call footprint infringement. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. so then that’s clear that they understand what we’re ruling on. 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, but the question…

Mr. Donovan: I don’t know if it’s clear to them, it’s clear to me. We did have a discrepancy on the …

Chairperson Cardone: On the lot coverage.

Mr. Donovan: …on the lot coverage so, I mean you really only get one chance to get it right so there is nothing with taking the time to get it right.

Mr. Hughes: Hmm, hm, I would agree with reserving decision on it.

Chairperson Cardone:  Could I have a motion to that effect?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes





Brenda Drake: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: And Mr. Canfield you will recalculate all of that and get back to us on that.

Mr. Canfield: Yes. And resubmit the sheets.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 9:53 PM)    

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                               (Time Noted – 9:10 PM) 

LONGINOT/WYGANT


579 LAKESIDE ROAD, NBGH







(13-1-18) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking a Special Use Permit; area and use variances to keep a prior built detached accessory apartment. Variances for 1 dwelling per lot, accessory apt is to improve the feasibility of maintaining a large existing dwelling, property owner is to reside on the premises, the proposed lot is to meet the minimum requirements for a single family dwelling. 40,000 sq ft required, corner lot requires a 40’ front yard setback due to the change of use; an accessory building to an accessory apt and a non-conforming use shall not be extended to displace a conforming use (shed to dwelling).

Chairperson Cardone: The next item on the agenda, as I stated at the beginning, is going to be held over to the July 26th meeting. 

Chairperson Cardone: We’re going to take a short adjournment to confer with Counsel regarding legal questions raised by tonight’s applications. If I could ask you in the interest of time to step out into the hallway … one moment, please.

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, Code Compliance Supervisor, if we could just direct the Board’s attention to go back to the Ann Carbone application, after I thoroughly examined the site plans and the building plans tonight, I believe I stated earlier that there would be no variance request needed for increased size and that was incorrect. O.K. I have recalculated everything that has been submitted to us; the apartment sized is 998 sq ft, the addition apartment, what’s allowable is 832 sq ft so that is approximately a 6% overage of the 25%, O.K. So, their request would be for two, the use variance and the increase in the size of a 166 sq ft, just so the records clear. 

Chairperson Cardone: 6% over? 

Mr. Canfield: Yes, 6%. 

Mr. Hughes: 6% over the 25.

Mr. Canfield: 6% over the 25, yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: We’ll adjourn now.

(Time Noted – 9:16 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                               (Time Noted – 8:41 PM) 

DAVID & ROSEMARIE ARCURI

9 ROSE ESTATES, WALDEN







(30-1-5.2) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yards setbacks to build a 2-story addition on the residence.

Chairperson Cardone: The next item was held over from last month from the May 24th meeting pending a report from the Orange County Department of Planning and we have received that report. This is David and Rosemarie Arcuri, 9 Rose Estates, Walden. And, I will read that report. The proposed action has no significant Countywide or Intercommunity impact and the County recommendation is Local determination. Do we have any comments on that? 

(No response) 

(Time Noted – 8:42 PM) 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                              (Resumption for decision: 9:53 PM)

DAVID & ROSEMARIE ARCURI

9 ROSE ESTATES, WALDEN







(30-1-5.2) R-1 ZONE

Applicant is seeking an area variance for the side yards setbacks to build a 2-story addition on the residence.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of David and Rosemarie Arcuri at 9 Rose Estates in Walden seeking an area variance for side yard setbacks to build a 2-story addition on the residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Ms. Eaton: Wasn’t this for a second garage and a floor space above that?

Ms. Arcuri: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: So would that still be considered a 2-story addition or would we have to vote on it? 

Chairperson Cardone: Let me read from the minutes, we have an existing 2-story house at 9 Rose Estates and we would like to put an addition on our house. Actually we have a 1-car garage, an existing 1-car garage and what we propose to do is to make it a 2-car garage and then build up above the existing garage and the new garage to complete a 2nd story on the house for the addition. And, they have to go out an additional 12 feet in order to accommodate the garage.

Ms. Eaton: This is a side yard.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Ms. Eaton: We were waiting for the response from…

Chairperson Cardone: … the County and we received that and their recommendation was Local Determination. The side yard variance, according to the minutes, is existing 27’ x 64’ and requesting 26’ x 53’. Any other discussion on this application? Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for disapproval on this application?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. We need some kind of a motion here.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll make a motion to approve.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll second that.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes





Brenda Drake: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. 

(Time Noted – 9:54 PM)   

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                               (Time Noted – 8:42  PM) 

DANIEL SCHWARZBECK


12 PADDOCK PLACE, NBGH







(56-3-44.2) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for maximum height, maximum allowed 1000 sq ft for accessory structures and the maximum storage of (4) four vehicles to build a 24’x36’garage (accessory structure).

Chairperson Cardone: Our next application Daniel Schwarzbeck, 12 Paddock Place in Newburgh that was held open from last month so that the Members of the Board would be able to visit the site. And, I believe at this point all Members have been to the site.

Mr. Manley: As was the last time I am also recusing myself from this matter.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Dan Schwarzbeck, 12 Paddock Place returning from the May 24th meeting. You reviewed construction of a 24’x36’ historic saltbox garage for personal storage and handicapped child storage needs. The garage storage also needed to accommodate the future historic re-listing of a 1790 farmhouse. The variances were for height, square footage and the fifth garage bay. Just to take a step ahead, going back at my expense, I met with Minuta Architects and the builder and the height and square footage are required to meet my handicapped sons physical therapy needs, personal storage capacity and to perfectly complement the landscape and historic architecture of this 1790 farmhouse. I do not, we can redesign it, I do not need the third variance of the bay garage so we can forego that variance.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: I have provided you with a letter from the State.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, we have received that.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: And, I am still in discussions with them as you know and I guess it’s your thoughts on the visit to the property.

Chairperson Cardone: So, what you’re proposing now is the maximum height requirement and …

Mr. Schwarzbeck: The maximum height requirement and I did not add, I apologize, upon removing the variance for the door, I brought it down based on Mr. Hughes comments last time to try to sharpen my pencil, with that design with the two doors, I propose to build it by 24 x 32 instead of 24 x 36. That would give me the square footage of 1152 

instead of 1296 in a 24 x 36 garage. 

Chairperson Cardone: So your total then would be?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: 1152. 

Chairperson Cardone: Of both accessory structures?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Of the garage itself. Again the second story does not have a full running loft, it has a half loft.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions on this?

Mr. Hughes: Do you reconfigure to drop the roof with your…?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: No.

Mr. Hughes: So you still have that requirement for the height?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Yes. The max …

Mr. Hughes: Why do you have 11 feet upstairs for storage?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: That’s because the storage that I explained to them what I needed and to match the pitch of my existing garage to match it historically that’s exactly what they said I needed. And remember, we discussed we have to put the windows in above my garage doors to match the existing house that’s currently built today. That was the difference in the height as well to make it. Now, I am not an architect but at my expense that’s what I explained to them and that’s exactly what the builder had told me. 

Mr. Hughes: And, did someone from the Historical Review Board tell you that you had to keep those same degree dimensions of the roof line?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Before I can re-list it anywhere, they have exactly what we have right here today, New York’s Parks and Recreation Historic Preservation. They didn’t have any problem with it and they think it’s going to fit perfectly for what I am trying to do.

And most importantly I have been contacted by them, through Albany, regarding my son.

Chairperson Cardone: Could you give me the dimensions again of the new structure?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: 24 x 32.

Chairperson Cardone: So that would be 668.

Mr. McKelvey: What was the barn dimension?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: The barn itself?

Mr. McKelvey: Since you cut this building down, it’s going to drop it, the total.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: The barn is 25 x 39.

Mr. McKelvey: Did you state the square footage of that?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: I’m sorry?

Mr. McKelvey: Did you state in here?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: No, I did not state that. That is a non-functioning …

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, we understand that.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: I cannot use that. We stated that last time. The State understands what I am trying to do with the garage.

Mr. McKelvey: We’re just trying to look at the total square footage right now that’s all.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: As I stated before, I wouldn’t be putting a garage up if I could use my barn. 

Chairperson Cardone: And, all doors are staying as you …?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: All doors are staying except I am removing the, I had asked for the fifth which is no longer required under this design. 

Chairperson Cardone: And, you are removing the fifth door?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Yeah, that won’t be an issue anymore.

Mr. McKelvey: The saltbox?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: The saltbox garage.

Mr. McKelvey: …is going to have two doors.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: The saltbox will have two doors, that’s correct.

Mr. Hughes: If you could refresh my memory a little, how do you get to your storage area in that garage?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: There’s stairs in the back.

Mr. Hughes: Inside?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Inside, interior and what they’ll do because of my son is that we’re going to contain it with a door upstairs so there is no physical way that anybody can fall off the loft. Now the State provided to me just under the, for my son’s behalf, the American with Disabilities Act involving qualified historic properties which mine is, required alterations and building accommodations can be made for the handicapped as long as they do not threaten nor destroy the historic significance of qualified historic structures. This is defined in version 4.17 of the uniform Federal Handicap Accessibility Standards. This garage does not threaten nor destroy the existing historic structure or landscape. Discriminatory effects on proposed architecture and failure to allow proper modifications to existing facilities is not acceptable. Over protective rules and local policies force regulation of handicap services, programs, activities, benefits and other social opportunities. The State understands that this will be listed historically and we spoke about that before I have to do all this before I can apply to the State and to the Commissioner. So, they have everything you have and again I removed the one variance and I refined the total square footage.

Mr. Donovan: Again for my own clarification what is the total square footage of accessory structures? The one that exists and the one that is proposed could I have the total?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: 1152.

Mr. Hughes: About 1950, both of them.

Mr. Donovan: Both of them.

Mr. Hughes: You say your garage is 39 x 24, the original barn.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: No, the barn, the barn itself.

Mr. Hughes: 25 x 39.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Which is non-functioning per the State.

Mr. Hughes: That’s almost 800 right there and 1152. That’s almost double what the maximum allowable is. 

Mr. Schwarzbeck: For your edification, I don’t think you were here last month, I had provided a letter from the State trying to get a grant.

Mr. Donovan: Yes, I have the file. I’m just trying to; because my notes are indicating that the total accessory building area is proposed is 1739.

Mr. Hughes: That’s 2-story.

Mr. Donovan: Correct. But I just wanted to, since he is allowed 1000, we need to know if he made the one structure smaller how come the number got higher.

Mr. Hughes: Well, I had a question about that myself. And, the gentlemen is right you weren’t here for the discussion last month, Mike was. 

Mr. Donovan: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Maybe you should review the minutes of what was volleyed back and forth on the floor. 

Chairperson Cardone: There was discussion about the second floor and the second floor was not to be counted and we were going by dimensions of the buildings. Now, the original structure that’s there according to my calculations I don’t know if you have the same thing, John.

Mr. McKelvey: It’s down to 668 now.

Mr. Hughes: 768.

Ms. Eaton: 768.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: The original was…

Chairperson Cardone: The 39 x 25?

Mr. Hughes: Yep.

Chairperson Cardone: No.

Ms. Eaton: No. The 32 x 24.

Mr. Donovan: And then the barn is 25 x 39?

Ms. Eaton: Right.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. That would be 975.

Mr. McKelvey: 24 x 32, right? You said?

Mr. Hughes: 39.

Chairperson Cardone: The barn is 39 x  25.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: The barn is 25 x 39.

Chairperson Cardone:  And that would be 975.

Mr. Donovan: Plus?

Mr. Hughes: 1152.

Chairperson Cardone: No plus 668.

Mr. McKelvey: No, 668. Just the footprint.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, you’re just going the footprint. Well that’s where I was off course, sorry about that.

Chairperson Cardone: Because he decreased the size of it. It was 800 and something.

Mr. McKelvey: And now it’s 1643.

Mr. Donovan: That’s all I wanted to know. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, Mr. Canfield?

Mr. Canfield: 24 x 32 is 768 sq ft.

Chairperson Cardone: 24 x 32?

Mr. Donovan: So it’s 1743.

Mr. McKelvey: 1743.

Chairperson Cardone: 1743.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: So, now I have a question for you, Sir. 

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Yes, sir.

Mr. Hughes: I read you letter in response from the State in December of ’06. Suppose what you’re stacking up now isn’t satisfactory to them and the end result what do you intend to do with the barn?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: At this point, it’s locked and it’s historically aesthetic that’s about it.

I have no…

Mr. Hughes: So, you don’t even use it.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: I don’t use it, no.

Mr. Hughes: Boy.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: It’s locked.

Mr. McKelvey: You told us it’s unsafe to go inside?

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Yeah. And my discussions with the State that’s what they recommended when they visited the site so there is nothing I can do with it unfortunately.

I wouldn’t be spending the money I am spending if I could use that.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: It has a full loft upstairs too.

Mr. Hughes: Where’s the glitch?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Where’s the glitch, where?

Mr. Hughes: Why can’t you do something with it?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: It’s 109 years old.

Mr. Hughes: Yeah?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: It’s not weatherproof. To restore a barn it would cost you $80,000. Oh, I looked there too.

Mr. Hughes: Hmm, hm.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Again, I have a 1790 farmhouse. I have no basement, which has water. I have no attic space. I explained I have no closet space because you were taxed on closets so that’s why farmhouse had none. I never anticipated having a handicapped child. If could understand the responsibility required for this. I think the State does now.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions, comments? Do we have any questions or comments?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: No, just before I had my neighbor here, he could not make it. Thomas Johnson, he was in support of me.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, we have that in the minutes from last month.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Yeah, I sent 39 letters out and there was one positive response from him. I don’t think there was anybody else that I know from the neighborhood. 

Chairperson Cardone: I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: I’ll make a motion.

Ms. Eaton:  I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call – 

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Recused

Grace Cardone: Yes

Brenda Drake - Absent

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

 (Time Noted – 8:57 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JUNE 28, 2007                              (Resumption for decision: 9:50 PM)

DANIEL SCHWARZBECK


12 PADDOCK PLACE, NBGH







(56-3-44.2) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for maximum height, maximum allowed 1000 sq ft for accessory structures and the maximum storage of (4) four vehicles to build a 24’x36’garage (accessory structure).

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Daniel Schwarzbeck at 12 Paddock Place seeking an area variance for maximum height, maximum allowed 1000 sq ft for accessory structures and maximum storage of (4) vehicles to build a 24’x36’ garage. And that figure was changed to 24’x32’?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: That’s correct. 

Chairperson Cardone: And limited to (4) four vehicles?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: So, we’re looking at maximum height and the maximum square footage for accessory structures. Do we have discussion on this application?

Ms. Eaton: I think Mr. Schwarzbeck has made a concession and he has come to us legally to have his facility on his property and I make a motion to approve.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Kunkel: I’ll second that motion.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

John McKelvey: Yes

Mr. Hughes: I’d like a question first before we go through the vote. I’m not really clear on something and I want to make sure what I am looking at here. The only thing that I detect is a 4 foot difference of reduction in the length of the building. Is there something else that I’m missing or is that it?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes the doors of the structure was changed so that it just had an access door. Would you go over that, please?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: I originally proposed for the fifth bay, a variance and I don’t need the fifth bay anymore so it’s only got two doors on the structure and you’re correct it will go from 36 feet to difference of 4 feet to 32 feet. 

Mr. Hughes: And, the elimination of the fifth door?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: That’s correct. 

Chairperson Cardone: Right. 

Mr. Hughes: But that’s it, there was no reduction of the height or anything else? I don’t know, I am not really comfortable because of the size of the square footage of the footprint is excessive and we just had another one of these and even though the guy brought it illegally it’s the same building, it’s the same overage. I’m not comfortable with that. I thank you for answering those questions. I thought I was missing something. I thought there was some other reductions that were offered.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: That’s O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: I think it’s an entirely different circumstance. We have a historic building that’s being added into the mix that’s not usable. We also have a situation where there is a handicapped child. There is a need to store certain equipment that has to be used. It definitely represents a hardship as far as I’m concerned.   

Mr. Hughes: Then, there is one other question I will ask and that will be it. Suppose you get your paperwork together and they offer you an opportunity rebuild the old barn, what happens then?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: At this point I asked that question and the next grant offer to the State is in 2009 if I even get that. Even to apply, they have thousands and thousands of applicants and they politely contacted me and had more interest in my home as well as the barn and wanted me (inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: I’m sorry, I’m sorry, could you use the mic, the air conditioner just went on and we won’t be able to hear anything. 

Mr. Schwarzbeck: But I am trying to do that with the assistance of this garage.

Mr. Hughes: Hmm, hm. Thank you for answering those questions.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: And, also Mr. Hughes if you look at the new structure on it’s own, without looking at the barn, it is under 1000 sq ft.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, the footprint.

Chairperson Cardone: So, it’s not really the same as in and of itself is 1800 sq ft.

Mr. Hughes: Hmm, hm. I have nothing else.

Mr. McKelvey: Can we make it that the barn just remains as it is? O.K. will you settle with that?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Yes, I have no intentions with the barn.

Mr. McKelvey: This way, I think he asked you if down the road…?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: That’s was an excellent question you offered but I had inquired about people that restored barns and it would cost me about $80,000 to do it and I’m still not guaranteed in the long run that over 109 years old opposed to a brand new structure that’s going to help me, my family as well as my son.

Mr. Hughes: One other caveat, if you do get on the historic register they are very restrictive what you can do with that.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Absolutely correct, from color to structure, so another excellent question in a sense that I can’t modify that in any way.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, but if we made that a stipulation so…?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: I have no issue with that.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. And thank you to my fellow Board Members for all their input on this as well.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a motion for approval? We had the motion.

Mr. Hughes: And a second as well.

Chairperson Cardone: We had a second.

Mr. Kunkel: Right.

Mr. Donovan: I’m sorry to interrupt, but let me just make sure I understand what the motion is, because I think the motion was to approve the application?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. Now there is a suggestion by Mr. Hughes that we add to that?

Mr. Hughes: Well, no, I am satisfied if you’re satisfied that it’s a horse of a different color. To me it just seemed like it was the same thing and I don’t want to get into an area where we may seem to be acting arbitrarily. The footages and everything else were the same it’s just the other guys methodology was completely wrong. 

Mr. Donovan: I think Mr. McKelvey made a suggestion that the barn not be used.

Mr. McKelvey: Well that’s what he said.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: As of right now, per the State, it’s not safe to use and I can’t.

Mr. Donovan: I understand that but the suggestion is that the condition of the variance is that you can never use it. If I understand you correctly?

Mr. McKelvey: Yes, that’s what I said.

Mr. Hughes: Or, unless it’s made safe maybe.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Or if it’s corrected to be made safe, but.

Mr. Donovan: Whatever, it’s up to the Board to take that to reasoning.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: I understand.

Mr. Hughes: So, you could modify that condition that if it is made safe at some point that it’s open season.

Mr. McKelvey: Yeah, it’s according to what the State would tell him.

Ms. Eaton: If the State agrees.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Right and I, excellent points, I have to agree once it’s re-listed on specific things posed by the State I can’t modify it in any way.

Mr. Hughes: Hmm, hm.

Chairperson Cardone: But it would not be used in the future for storage or storage of vehicles.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: No. No.

Mr. McKelvey: You say it’s locked now anyhow?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: Both doors are locked, yes.

Mr. McKelvey: And that recommendation is by the State?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: That is correct.

Mr. Donovan: So I am clear, is the condition that he can never use it or he can’t use it unless it’s made safe.

Mr. Hughes: He can’t use it until it’s made safe.

Mr. McKelvey: Until it’s made safe.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Schwarzbeck. Fair enough.

Mr. Hughes: With an appropriate C.O. from the Town?

Mr. McKelvey: And it wouldn’t be made as a garage?

Mr. Schwarzbeck: No.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s what I’m suggesting that it would not be used for storage of vehicles or for storage. 

Mr. McKelvey: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Can we have better language?

Chairperson Cardone: Could we have that language instead? It never being used …

Mr. Donovan: Sure so not used for storage or storage of vehicles, sure.

Mr. Schwarzbeck: O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Does everyone understand the motion? Can we have a vote on that?

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K.

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Recused

Grace Cardone: Yes





Brenda Drake: Absent

Chairperson Cardone: That motion is carried. 

(Time Noted – 10:00 PM)   
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Applicant is seeking area variances for lot area, lot width and lot depth to build a new 1-Family residence.

Chairperson Cardone: Also held over from last month, Laura Jean Younie, corner of Neversink Drive and Route 52. We left the public hearing open on this also. And, I’ll read the County report. The proposed action has no significant Countywide or Intercommunity impact and that’s Local determination recommended by the County. Do we have any further discussion on this?

Mr. Hughes: Can we refresh everyone’s memory about why we left it open and what was being discussed? Our Attorney wasn’t here.

Ms. Gennarelli: Can we hold it up a moment? I must put in a new tape. Thank you.

Mr. Donovan: Mike’s notes just indicate waiting for the 239 report. 

Mr. Hughes: Hmm, hm.

Mr. Donovan: He’s got no other notes in the file.

Mr. Hughes: There were some things about this project that weren’t clearly represented when we questioned the applicant’s builder and there was some conflict in this story in reporting of whether it was possible to acquire more land and some other options and then it turns out that this thing appears as if this thing is being segmentally spread across two or three parcels, that are adjacent to each other in common ownership. And, it seemed odd to me that this segmentation could take place without anybody being aware of it and I went back to the site to review my notes and check things out. I think the rest of the Board should check it out as well. There are three very small lots in that neighborhood. The applicant’s builder represented the applicant in these proceedings and although certain questions were asked I think we were mislead with some answers. Some of the stuff doesn’t add up to me.

Chairperson Cardone: All right. Would Frank Lombardi or Laura Jean Younie be here?

Mr. Lombardi: Frank Lombardi

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Hughes, if you could pose your questions?

Mr. Hughes: Yes. Do you recall what you told us on record about these parcels in the neighborhood that you are working on and the applications processes, opportunities to acquire more land?

Mr. Lombardi: If I could grab a copy of the minutes, from the Board, so I could refresh my memory by reading them? (acquired a copy of minutes to read)  Why don’t I just recite the paragraph so it’s the exact same answer from the last meeting? I think it still holds true. Mr. Hughes asked if there was any way of obtaining property from the lot next door. My response was, no, unfortunately Mr. Angelone has a house on his lot, has an existing house and his house is, I don’t know, very, very close to the property line so he needs the lot which is next door and the middle, the one we’re speaking about to access basically it’s his driveway to access his house because his house is built within feet of the property line. So I said, how about, well he goes well I need this lot to come in, this is where I come in from for my driveway and that’s the outside parking area. So, besides taking a few feet of the lot possibly it’s probably not cost effective and it doesn’t bring me, meaning this the lot in question, the corner lot much closer to 15,000 sq ft than 800, I mean without 9,000 or 10,000 we are still way under. So, he needs the majority of the lot to put out as his off street parking and he has patients so it’s a parking lot for his chiropractic business. I’m sure he needs more than just residential parking. 

Mr. Hughes: Now, you’ve been before this Board before with another parcel that you’re building on presently?

Mr. Lombardi: No, I have not.

Mr. Hughes: No?

Mr. Lombardi: No, sir.

Mr. Manley: Did the applicant own another piece of property adjacent to this property?

Mr. Lombardi: Yes.

Mr. Manley: And, was a variance granted for that parcel of property to build a structure on it?

Mr. Lombardi: I am not aware that there has been one.

Mr. Manley: O.K. And, the applicant decided not to live in that house that was built on that other piece of property that was owned by the applicant, correct?

Mr. Lombardi: The lot with the, the lot with the active Building Permit is that the lot you are speaking about? 

Mr. Manley: Right. That house is being built for speculation, is that correct?

Mr. Lombardi: Correct.

Mr. Manley: O.K. And, was your testimony at the last meeting before this Board that the present lot that is currently being built or that you’re requesting a variance on will be used for the applicant to reside in? Is that correct?

Mr. Lombardi: I think you just spoke about two lots in one sentence. You said the current lot that’s being built and the lot in question for the variance, that was in your one sentence. That’s two different lots. 

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Lombardi: The lot that we’re here tonight for, for the variance, is the lot that the owner has interest in living in, cause it’s small enough. The lot with the active Building Permit is too big for her to live in.

Mr. Manley: If I recall you’re testimony at the last session was that she was definitely going to reside on the property. 

Mr. Lombardi: Correct.

Mr. Manley: Has that changed or?

Mr. Lombardi: Well, since we made the house smaller to the two bedroom, then she said that… first, the first meeting we proposed a three bedroom it was too big. And, then the Board asked if she was going live there. I didn’t know the answer. I went back and said they wanted a smaller house. We proposed a two bedroom and do you want to live there?

She said well a two bedroom, yes. And, that’s what I said. She has interest in living in the corner lot, which we are here for the variance for which is now proposed as a two bedroom instead of the original three.  

Mr. Manley: O.K. There’s just, it sounds like you’re being very careful with what you’re has an interest versus is definitely going to reside there, are two different. Has an interest leaves room for maybe I won’t live there after it’s built. 

Mr. Lombardi: I’m speaking in the third person. When I spoke to her, she said that sounds like a great deal because I could live in the smaller house. I could downsize and she’s a single mom. I cannot directly speak for actions because if I do say she is going to live there and she don’t, I become the liar. Really.

Ms. Eaton: Did she say she was going to live there?

Mr. Lombardi: I am only telling you what she told me.

Ms. Eaton: You also stated at the first meeting that it was being done as a spec house.

Mr. Lombardi: That’s correct. At the first meeting it was a three bedroom. It was a larger house and the Board asked if she was going to live there and I said, I don’t know. So, I went back to the owner and I said, they want to reduce the size of the house to a two bedroom and they want to know are you going to live there? She said, well if it’s a two bedroom, I’m going to live there. It’s good for me to downsize. So, I think she has a, I don’t know, a three bedroom, I don’t know. She has a larger house that the one we proposed. So, I had a conversation with her and that’s what she transposed. I don’t know if that were the exact words. It’s just, yes, I am going to live there, period and you could say that. I got out of her that she is going to live there. So, if I build it, I’ll downsize. I said great, O.K.

Ms. Eaton: I’d like to know the answer to that question, whether it’s a definite fact that she will live in there or if she is building it for speculation.

Mr. Lombardi: I can only tell you what she, what my conversation was with her at this point.

Mr. Hughes: It appears to me that there is a series of piggybacking that’s going on here to achieve a goal of getting more than one dwelling on substandard lots and in the beginning, I don’t know if it was you or the applicant or another representative but they asked if there was a way to achieve getting a larger lot out of this deal by acquiring more property and no one ever said anything about having two or three properties strung together.

Chairperson Cardone: Are there two or three properties that belong to the owner?

Mr. Lombardi. Two. Let me just ask Mr. Hughes; tell me a time frame again? Just rephrase your question with a time frame. Somebody asked that, when, say it again?

Mr. Hughes: When the first building application was asked to be varied, we asked the applicant if there was another way to achieve this rather than to go with all these variances on the substandard lot and they told us no.

Mr. Lombardi: O.K. Was there a variance on the lot that has the active Building Permit? 

Mr. Hughes: Well, no, the fact of the matter was, is there was more property in the same ownership that could have been combined to make a standard lot or a better lot and we weren’t told about that. 

Mr. Lombardi: O.K. was there a variance granted on the lot with the active Building Permit? Because I jumped in midstream, from the initial application, I jumped in as the builder after a lot of the paperwork was in place. It had changed hands, of builders’ hands.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t have that kind of memory but the scent of the trail and the story is there but I don’t remember what the numbers were. 


Mr. Lombardi: Well, right as far as I looked with all the paperwork I don’t see that there was a variance granted for the first lot. It was just a simple Building Permit. I mean I actually pulled the Building Permit, most of the paperwork was done and I just ascertained the water, sewer and the Building Permit. So, if the variance was granted I never had access to the folder prior to just finishing up the application so I don’t know and in fact, if that was your memory I don’t know. But if they didn’t get a variance and it was just issued, then there was no question.

Mr. Hughes: I can understand that.

Mr. Lombardi: I don’t know the time frame.

Mr. Hughes: I’ll review my notes.

Chairperson Cardone: Do you have an answer to that? (to Mr. Canfield)

Mr. Canfield: I’m sorry, was there a variance needed?

Mr. Hughes: On the first lot?

Mr. Canfield: No.

Mr. Hughes: So, they went and got a Permit?

Mr. Canfield: Correct.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s why you don’t remember, because they didn’t have to.

Mr. Hughes: That’s why I’m asking because there was something that didn’t add up and then subsequently I looked and both lots were in the same ownership, I thought well, why the hell did this go on? They should have combined them and made them and made one bigger one right off the bat.

Mr. Lombardi: So, then I guess you never had the opportunity to ask the question with the first one to combine them because they were never here.

Mr. Hughes: Right.

Mr. Lombardi: O.K. so nobody really circumvented any procedure?

Mr. Hughes: I wanted to know where you were in the picture and that my memory is serving me properly.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions? Any questions or comments from the public? If not I will entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: So moved.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call – 

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Brenda Drake - Absent

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

 (Time Noted – 9:10 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Laura Jean Younie, corner of Neversink Drive and Route 52 seeking an area variance for the lot area, lot width and lot depth to build a new 1-family residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: Well I think that the amount of the lot area is not enough to fit this particular residence. You’re trying to put too much. You know, if you’re only looking at 1000, 1500 that they needed or even 2000 I think I would be happy with that but I mean it’s almost 50% of what’s required by Code and I just, it’s in a bad spot, the lot is just in a bad spot. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any other discussion on this?

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I agree with my colleague, Mr. Manley, it’s just too much to put in a tiny spot like that especially with adjacent properties being under the same ownership. It’s just a matter of poor planning; there is no hardship here. 

Chairperson Cardone:  Do I have a motion for approval on this application?

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have motion for a disapproval on this application?

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Chairperson Cardone: Do I have a second?

Mr. Manley: Second. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call – 

John McKelvey: Yes

Ruth Eaton: Yes

Ronald Hughes:  Yes

Robert Kunkel: Yes 

James Manley: Yes

Grace Cardone: Yes

Brenda Drake – Absent

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried. 

 (Time Noted – 10:02 PM)  
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END OF MEETING 
                                            (Time Noted – 10:02 PM)



Chairperson Cardone: Everyone has the minutes from the last meeting, you had a chance to look at them? 

Affirmative reaction.

Chairperson Cardone: Are there any additions, deletions, corrections?

Mr. McKelvey: I didn’t see any. I’ll make a motion we approve the minutes.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Do I have a second for that?

Ms. Eaton: Second. 

Chairperson Cardone: All in favor, please say Aye.

Aye All 

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No Response.


Chairperson Cardone: The motion is carried. Do we have any other business? If not, I declare the meeting adjourned until next month. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE 

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

ROBERT KUNKEL

JOHN MC KELVEY

JAMES MANLEY

BRENDA DRAKE - ABSENT

DAVID DONOVAN, ESQ.

(Time Noted – 10:04 PM)

